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executive message
The Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation 
Authority (SEPTA) was a key driver in the Philadelphia 
region in Fiscal Year 2008. The nation’s fifth largest 
public transportation agency connected people to 
jobs, education, healthcare and beyond in record 
numbers. Customers took 325 million unlinked trips in 
Fiscal Year 2008, 18 million more trips than compared 
to Fiscal Year 2007. Total ridership grew 5.8%. 

Customers throughout Philadelphia, Bucks, Chester, 
Delaware and Montgomery Counties climbed aboard 
SEPTA for an economical and convenient alternative 
to spiking gas prices. On the City Transit Division—
subways, buses, and trolleys—ridership rose 5.2%. 
On Regional Rail Division trains, ridership was up 
11.8%. On the Suburban Transit Division—Victory 
and Frontier buses, trolleys, and the High-Speed 
Line—the rise was 3.9%.

As vehicles filled up, SEPTA responded strategically 
by aligning capacity to accommodate customer 
demand. During peak hours we added service on 
the Market-Frankford Line and select Regional Rail 
Lines. This lays the groundwork for more service in 
the upcoming budget. Further measures included 
hiring more police officers and increasing the number 
of external sales locations by 10%.

Efforts emphasized improving customer service. Our 
key priorities are the four C’s - Courtesy, Cleanliness, 
Communications and Convenience. This included:

• Creation of a Customer Service Division 
• Face-to-face interaction between riders and 

management
• An online customer feedback survey
• Increased vehicle cleanings

Joseph M. Casey
General manager

Pasquale T. Deon, Sr.
chairman

With customer and regional needs in mind, our plans 
advanced to acquire modern vehicles. SEPTA’s new 
fleet carried more riders, while at the same time 
curbed greenhouse emissions and saved energy. This 
included:

• 100 new hybrid/diesel buses, with 300 more 
on order

• 38 new electric trolley buses
• The design of 120 new Silverliner V  

Regional Rail cars

SEPTA also completed projects that renewed stations 
and track. A few of these achievements included:  

• Rebuilding four stations and track on the 
100-year-old Market-Frankford Line 

• Installing an elevator at a major stop on the 
Broad Street Line 

• Upgrading the Wissahickon Transportation 
Center serving 140 buses daily 

• Reconstructing Gulph Mills Station into an 
accessible hub linking bus and High-Speed 
Line service

Fiscal Year 2008 was the period in which SEPTA proved 
that it is an invaluable resource. Customers selected 
SEPTA by leaving their cars behind in record numbers. 
State legislators voted for public transit with Act 44. 
Business leaders, educators and citizens believed in 
SEPTA by building offices and living in homes in close 
proximity to our service. And environmentalists saw 
SEPTA as a sustainability solution. With adequate 
funding, we stand ready to collaborate with these 
entities to help the economy recover.
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It was a year of transformation for SEPTA, the nation’s fifth largest public transportation agency. People 
throughout Philadelphia, Bucks, Chester, Delaware and Montgomery Counties were leaving their cars 
behind in record numbers and climbing aboard. 

SEPTA Delivered in 2008

Ridership Rises to a Record
SEPTA provided a record 325 million unlinked trips in Fiscal Year 2008. That is 18 million more trips than 
last year. Overall, total ridership was up 5.8%. Regional Rail ridership rose to its highest point in 30 years. 
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Many Reasons to Ride
Volatile gas prices gave new riders a reason to try our buses, trains, subways and trolleys. They discovered 
SEPTA to be the best, most efficient and greenest way to move around. Here are some of the reasons 
people preferred SEPTA: 

	 » Takes people to jobs

	 » Eases roadway congestion 

	 » Saves car costs (gas, parking and insurance)

	 » Reduces greenhouse gases

	 » Lowers demand for oil
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The Authority met demand with a service expansion. SEPTA increased frequency by 12% on the Market-Frankford 
Line, the subway-elevated route that moves riders east to west throughout the City. SEPTA added service on 
selected Regional Rail lines. It also began negotiating the lease of eight NJ Transit rail cars, augmenting the 
existing fleet of 348, until new rail cars arrive. And to complement overall demand, SEPTA hired more police 
officers and increased the number of external sales locations by 10%.

more septa, more often
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stable source of 
funding

the economic engine 
that did
Not only did SEPTA keep people moving, it provided economic vitality amidst 
increasing financial turmoil. As budgets became strained, the average household 
saved about $1,400 in transportation costs. On a wider scale, Pennsylvania’s 
economy benefited as SEPTA spent about $1 billion doing business with 
companies in the state.

The start of this transformative period in SEPTA’s history was made possible 
by Act 44. The landmark legislation provided a stable source of funding for all 
Pennsylvania public transportation agencies. This meant improving mobility, 
along with solving the urgent problems of pollution and America’s growing 
dependency on oil.
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SEPTA continued to build and maintain one of the greenest, most 
energy-efficient transportation systems in the nation. It became 
greener before our eyes. 

» Hybrid buses: SEPTA will have one of the largest public transit 
hybrid bus fleets in the country. It ordered 400 new diesel-
electric hybrid buses to join the 32 already in service. 

» New electric low-floor trolley buses: a total of 38 rolled in to 
make the air cleaner.

» New electrified rail cars: Regional Rail ordered 120 electrified 
Silverliner V cars. They will save a great deal of energy with 
regenerative braking. 

go green
go septa
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SEPTA created a better quality of life for both riders and non-riders. 
It employed practices in design, construction and operations that 
make good sense for both business and people. Measures included 
integrating green building technologies throughout the system, 
purchasing renewable energy and converting lighting systems in 
subways for greater efficiency. 

SEPTA became an integral aspect of the region’s economic 
competitiveness. Said the City of Philadelphia’s Director of the 
Office of Sustainability Mark Alan Hughes, “…SEPTA isn’t just our 
public transit system; it’s a critical element in our ability to lower 
and sustain our competitive energy intensity.” 

sustainable



10

Project Completions
Modernize the Ride for Everyone
From station renovations, to parking expansions, to power supply upgrades, SEPTA completed projects 
that made it technologically modern and accessible for all riders, especially those with disabilities. 

This included:

» Accessibility for everyone at 8th Street Station on the Market-Frankford Elevated Line 

» Gulph Mills Station, a major suburban connector between the Norristown Route 100 High Speed 
Line, buses and a private employee shuttle 

» Wissahickon Transportation Center, a busy city hub serving eleven bus routes and 140 buses daily

» Smooth, reliable Regional Rail track between Paoli and Philadelphia 

» A new elevator at the Broad Street Line’s Walnut-Locust stop 

» Parking expansions, including the new Norristown Parking Garage and the expansion of spaces at 
Trevose Station 

» Reconstruction of stations on two miles of the western end of the 100-year-old Market-Frankford 
Elevated Line. Stations at 46th, 52nd, 56th & 60th Streets now have better security, communications, 
and access for people with disabilities. 

SEPTA also began major improvement projects, including a major renovation of Wayne Station, a new 
phase of escalator replacement, and the start of Smart Stations 2 to upgrade subway and trolley stations 
with modern communications and security technologies. 
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During Fiscal Year 2008, the SEPTA Board of Directors appointed Joseph M. Casey to the position of General Manager. Mr. 
Casey previously served as SEPTA’s Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. He is a disciplined fiscal manager who held budget 
growth and controlled spending throughout the last decade. He also oversaw transportation scheduling, route planning, long-
range planning, marketing and operational analysis. Now as General Manager, Mr. Casey put forth a vision to aggressively 
improve the customer experience: “We are committed to exceptional customer service, safety, on-time performance and 
cleanliness.” He focused on priorities known as the four “C”s - Courtesy, Cleanliness, Communications and Convenience.

Riders welcomed the aggressive maintenance program instituted by Mr. Casey that focused on cleanliness and overall 
appearance of stations and corridors. One example of success was midday vehicle cleanings in addition to routine cleanings. 
And an innovative arrangement between SEPTA, the City of Philadelphia, and Center City District yielded a cleaning 
agreement for major Center City transit corridors. Other features of the Customer Service initiative included:

»	Creation of a Customer Service Division 

»	Face-to-face interaction between riders and management

»	An online customer feedback survey

New General Manager 
is Customer Driven

General Manager Casey enjoys SEPTA’s young customers.
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SEPTA proved to be an indispensable asset time and time again. Its Broad Street Line Subway carried fans as the Phillies 
launched a championship season. It was the best alternative for thousands who could not drive when Interstate 95 was 
shut down. The new Comcast Center opened next to SEPTA’s Suburban Station, demonstrating the appeal of transit-
oriented development to employers. And finally, it celebrated centennial service that initiated the birth of Philadelphia’s 
western suburbs – the Route 100 Norristown High Speed Line and 69th Street Terminal, which forged an essential 
connection between Philadelphia and the burgeoning region at the turn-of-the-century. 

Today, at the start of the new millennium, SEPTA is proud that transit still helps the region thrive and solve challenges. 

 

moving
the region
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moving
the region
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OPERATING REVENUES

	P assenger

	 Other income

			T   otal operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

	 Operating expenses, 

		  excluding depreciation

	 Depreciation

			T   otal operating expenses

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

	S ubsidies

		  Federal

		S  tate

		L  ocal

		S  enior citizen

		A  sset Maintenance

				T    otal Subsidies

	I nvestment income

	I nterest expense

				T    otal nonoperating

					     revenues (expenses)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND AMORTIZATION 
OF CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

	A mortization of  
		  contributed capital	

	 Capital grants

				T    otal

Increase in net assets *

Decrease (increase) in 

	 accumulated operating deficit

OTHER

	 Working capital surplus 
		  (deficiency)

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the Years Ended June 30

(Millions of dollars)

2008**

$ 392.5 

 29.9 

 422.4 

1,100.3 

 	
275.5 

 1,375.8 

 32.6 

 489.9 

 68.3 

 19.8 

 — 

 610.6 

 9.4 

 (20.5)

 599.5 

 — 

 441.1 

 441.1 

 $  87.2 

 $  (50.0)

2007

$ 344.4 

 26.7 

 371.1 

943.5 

	
264.6 

1,208.1 

 99.6 

 313.3 

 74.5 

 65.8 

 54.2 

 607.4 

 6.8 

 (19.8)

 

594.4 

 — 

 349.2 

 349.2 

 $ 106.6 

 $  (34.5)

2006

$ 329.9 

 25.6 

 355.5 

893.6 

	
246.1 

 1,139.7 

 126.4 

 256.3 

 72.1 

 67.7 

 52.9 

 575.4 

 3.2 

 (21.0)

 

557.6 

 —

 343.8 

 343.8 

 $ 117.2 

 $  (18.9)

2005

$ 326.9 

 21.5 

 348.4 

881.7 

	
237.0 

1,118.7 

 83.7 

 293.9 

 71.9 

 68.9 

 54.2 

 572.6 

 2.9 

 (21.8)

 

553.7 

 — 

 316.3 

 316.3 

 $  99.7 

 $  (42.7)

2004

$ 323.3 

 26.1 

 349.4 

825.0 

 	
213.6 

 1,038.6 

 56.2 

 270.1 

 67.6 

 69.5 

 53.6 

 517.0 

 1.5 

 (22.3)

 

496.2 

 —

 332.9 

 332.9 

 $ 139.9 

 $  (48.5)

2003

$ 319.2 

 26.5 

 345.7 

799.0 

 	
193.7 

 992.7 

 30.2 

 276.0 

 68.8 

 68.3 

 51.7 

 495.0 

 2.7 

 (22.9)

 

474.8 

 — 

 337.4 

 337.4 

 $ 165.2 

 $  (37.1)

2002*

$ 315.4 

 24.9 

 340.3 

770.8 

 	
195.3 

 966.1 

 30.7 

 262.4 

 68.5 

 67.4 

 43.4 

 472.4 

 4.3 

 (23.9)

 

452.8 

 — 

 335.4 

 335.4 

 $ 162.4 

 $  (55.8)

2001*

$ 289.3 

 24.6 

 313.9 

748.6 

 	
179.8 

 928.4 

 32.0 

 263.4 

 66.8 

 60.5 

 41.7 

 464.4 

 9.7 

 (24.8)

 

449.3 

 — 

 263.8 

 263.8 

 $  98.6 

 $  (45.2)

2000

$ 287.9 

 22.7 

 310.6 

722.3 

 	
169.9 

 892.2 

 27.5 

 254.6 

 65.0 

 55.6 

 41.7 

 444.4 

 10.0 

 (25.4)

 

429.0 

 153.5 

—  

 153.5 

 $   0.9 

 $  (57.4)

1999

$ 263.0 

 19.9 

 282.9 

692.3 

 	
164.5 

 856.8 

 27.5 

 253.2 

 64.0 

 54.1 

 41.7 

 440.5 

 6.5 

 (22.0)

 

425.0 

 146.9 

 — 

 146.9 

 $   (2.0)

 $  (67.3)

*   Fiscal Year 2002 reflects the adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 concerning reporting requirements for the basic financial statements, resulting in the 
net asset classification, and the elimination of contributed capital and related amortization retroactive to July 1, 2000. Fiscal Year 2001 reflects the adoption of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions,” resulting in the recognition of capital grants in the statement of revenues and 
expenses.

**  Fiscal Year 2008 operating expenses include $ 97.6 million of other postemployment benefit expenses related to the adoption of the new Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.”						    
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Passenger Trips (linked, in millions)

	T ransit

	R egional Rail

			T   otal

Average Weekday Passenger 
Trips (unlinked, in thousands)

	T ransit

	R egional Rail

			T   otal

Financial Statistics  
(per passenger trip)

	 Operating Revenues

	 Operating Expenses

	S ubsidies

	I nvestment income 

		  (interest expense), net

	 Capital contributions 

		  and amortization

Increase in net assets

Decrease (increase) in 

	 accumulated operating deficit	

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the Years Ended June 30 

2008**

200.9 

 35.4 

 236.3 

 963 

 124 

 1,087 

 $  1.79 

 5.82 

 2.58 

 

(0.05)

 

1.87 

 $  0.37

2007

190.3 

 31.7 

 222.0 

 930 

 111 

 1,041 

 $  1.67 

 5.44 

 2.74 

 

(0.06)

 

1.57 

 $  0.48

2006

 183.9 

 30.4 

 214.3 

 920 

 107 

 1,027 

 $  1.66 

 5.32 

 2.69 

 

(0.08)

 

1.60 

 $  0.55 

2005

 186.2 

 28.6 

 214.8 

 920 

 101 

 1,021 

 $  1.62 

 5.21 

 2.67 

 

(0.09)

 1.47 

 $  0.46 

2004

185.5 

 28.3 

 213.8 

 930 

 101 

 1,031 

 $  1.63 

 4.86 

 2.42 

 

(0.10)

 

1.56 

 $  0.65

2003

181.0 

 28.1 

 209.1 

 934 

 101 

 1,035 

 $  1.65 

 4.75 

 2.37 

 

(0.10)

 

1.61 

 $  0.79

2002*

175.4 

 28.7 

 204.1 

 920 

 102 

 1,022 

 $  1.67 

 4.73 

 2.31 

 

(0.10)

 

1.64 

 $  0.80

2001*

180.5 

 29.4 

 209.9 

 945 

 103 

 1,048 

 $  1.50 

 4.42 

 2.21 

 

(0.07)

 

1.26 

 $  0.47

2000

178.5 

 26.9 

 205.4 

 938 

 95 

 1,033 

 $  1.51 

 4.34 

 2.15 

 

(0.07)

 0.75 

 $  0.00

1999

167.1 

 25.9 

 193.0 

 913 

 92 

 1,005 

 $  1.47 

 4.44 

 2.28 

(0.08)

0.76 

 $  (0.01)

*   Fiscal Year 2002 reflects the adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 concerning reporting requirements for the basic financial statements, resulting 
in the net asset classification, and the elimination of contributed capital and related amortization retroactive to July 1, 2000. Fiscal Year 2001 reflects the adoption of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions,” resulting in the recognition of capital grants in the statement of 
revenues and expenses.

**  Fiscal Year 2008 operating expenses include $ 97.6 million of other postemployment benefit expenses related to the adoption of the new Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.”					   
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*In Fiscal Year 2008, the source of subsidies changed with the passage of the Act 44 legislation. The former state system for funding transit, including asset 
maintenance subsidies received under Act 3 and Act 26 was repealed. Certain senior citizen subsidies received directly from the state lottery fund were eliminated and 
replaced with the new PTTF fund. For further discussion, see Note 1 of the financial statements.

** Fiscal Year 2008 includes $97.6 million of other postemployment benefit expenses related to the adoption of the new Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.”

SOURCES OF REVENUE & DISTRIBUTION OF EXPENSES 
FY 2008

FY 2008  SOURCES OF REVENUE *

3%  FEDERAL SUBSIDY

2%  SENIOR CITIZEN SUBSIDY

7%  LOCAL SUBSIDY

47%  STATE SUBSIDY

41%  PASSENGER AND OTHER REVENUE

FY 2008  DISTRIBUTION OF EXPENSES

3%  CASUALTY CLAIMS

5%  FUEL AND PROPULSION POWER

7%  OTHER

20%  DEPRECIATION

7%  MATERIALS AND SERVICES

58%  LABOR AND FRINGE BENEFITS **
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Members of the Board 
Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (the AUTHORITY), as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the 
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the AUTHORITY’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the AUTHORITY as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the 
changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2008 the AUTHORITY adopted the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 45, “Accounting 
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions” and 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement No. 50, “Pension Disclosures.”

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 18 through 23 is not a required part of 
the financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it.

ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
December 12, 2008
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This section of the Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority’s (“Authority”) annual financial statements presents a discussion and 
analysis of the Authority’s performance during the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2008. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial 
statements which follow this section.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements consist of: management’s discussion and 
analysis (this section), basic financial statements and notes to the 
financial statements.

The balance sheets, statements of revenues, expenses and changes 
in net assets, and statements of cash flows provide information about 
the Authority’s financial position and recent activities. The financial 
statements also include notes that explain some of the information 
in the financial statements, provide more detailed data, and provide 
more information about the Authority’s overall financial status.

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared on an accrual 
basis in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. 
Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they 
are earned and expenses are recognized in the period in which they 
are incurred.

management’s discussion and analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2008

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Passenger revenues increased 14.0% from $344.4 million to $392.6 
million due to an increase in ridership and a fare increase in the 
beginning of Fiscal Year 2008. Other income increased 11.9% from 
$26.7 million to $29.9 million primarily due to an increase in real estate 
and advertising revenue.

Operating expenses increased 13.9% from $1,208.1 million to 
$1,375.8 million primarily due to cost increases in wages, fringe 
benefits, fuel, depreciation, and claims costs. In addition, the Authority 
implemented in Fiscal Year 2008 Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting 
by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,” 
which resulted in the recognition of additional other postemployment 
benefit expenses accounting for approximately 8.1% of the operating 
expense increase.

Total subsidies, from Federal, State and local sources, increased 
0.5% from $607.4 million to $610.6 million primarily due to an increase 
in State subsidies which was partially offset by decreases in the transfer 
of federal surface transportation funds to preventive maintenance 
subsidy, asset maintenance subsidy, and senior citizen subsidy brought 
about by the passage of Pennsylvania Act 44 in July 2007 and the 
creation of the Pennsylvania Transportation Trust Fund.

Total assets increased 6.3% from $3,704.0 million to $3,936.1 million 
primarily due to capital asset acquisitions. Total liabilities increased 
14.4% from $1,006.9 million to $1,151.7 million primarily due to the 
recognition of other postemployment benefits under GASB 45 and 
an increase in accounts payable and deferred revenue. Net assets 
increased 3.2% from $2,697.2 million to $2,784.4 million primarily 
due to the recognition of capital grants and subsidies over the net 
operating loss.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY

Net assets. Total net assets of the Authority as of June 30, 2008 increased $87.2 million, or 3.2%, compared to June 30, 2007. Total assets increased 
$232.1 million or 6.3% to $3,936.1 million and total liabilities increased $144.9 million or 14.4% to $1,151.7 million.

Net Assets
(thousands of dollars)

2008

$  444,741

86,231

3,402,440

2,700

3,936,112

494,701

118,183

337,311

11,811

60,349

97,612

31,750

1,151,717

3,015,789

4,152

(235,546)

$2,784,395

2007

$  298,150

187,410

3,215,465

3,003

3,704,028

332,639

118,857

351,700

30,391

114,504

—

58,769

1,006,860

 2,849,404

4,150

(156,386)

$2,697,168

Increase
(decrease)

49.2%

(54.0%)

 5.8%

(10.1%)

6.3%

48.7% 

(0.6%)

(4.1%)

(61.1%)

(47.3%)

—

(46.0%)

14.4%

5.8%

—

50.6%

3.2%

As of June 30

Current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted funds	

Capital assets

Other assets

	T otal assets

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Public liability, property damage and workers’ 

	 compensation claims

Long-term debt

Long-term capitalized lease obligation

Deferred capital grant revenue

Other postemployment benefits

Other liabilities

	T otal liabilities

Net assets:

	I nvested in capital assets, net of related debt

	R estricted

	 Unrestricted

	T otal net assets			 

The increase in current assets of $146.6 million is primarily related 
to increases in restricted funds on hand of $93.7 million, unrestricted 
funds of $19.8 million, operating subsidies receivables of $23.9 million 
and capital grant receivables of $8.6 million. 

Restricted funds consist of amounts restricted by either government 
requirements or by contractual agreement between the Authority and 
external parties. The restricted funds increase in current assets includes 
$93.0 million for the unused portion of the new Act 44 state funds 

received during Fiscal Year 2008, plus local match and interest and a 
debt service fund deposit increase of $0.7 million. These funds will be 
used and recognized as operating subsidy in support of operations for 
the next fiscal year. The noncurrent restricted funds decrease of $101.2 
million reflects a $55.8 million decrease in restricted balances relating 
to State funding provided by Act 3 and Act 26 in prior years used to 
fund current year capital expenditures, lease costs, and debt service 
requirements. The State Act 3 and Act 26 former funding system was 
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repealed and replaced by the Pennsylvania Transportation Trust Fund 
(“PTTF”) in July 2007 and existing Act 3 and Act 26 funds are expected 
to be completely depleted over the next couple years. The remaining 
decrease in restricted funds includes a reduction of $18.6 million in the 
lease guaranteed investment contract fund used for payment of the 
long-term lease obligation and the use of $26.8 million of restricted 
railcar vehicle lease proceeds to fund the state share on selected 
capital projects, in lieu of receiving traditional state funds. In addition 
to these restricted funds, the Authority maintains various unrestricted 
designated funds, a majority of which were adopted by resolution 
of the Authority’s Board to cover a portion of the public liability and 
property damage claims for which the Authority is self-insured. These 
Board designated amounts totaled $45.9 million as of June 30, 2008 
and $44.6 million as of June 30, 2007. The Authority also maintains an 
unrestricted designated fund that was derived from swaption proceeds 
received in March 2003 which was intended to be amortized over the 
variable rate refunding bonds issued. The swaption fund balance was 
$19.4 million as of June 30, 2008 and was $92 thousand as of June 30, 
2007 since $19.8 million of the proceeds were temporarily needed in 
June 2007 and replenished in July 2007. The need to temporarily use 
less swaption and designated funds described above accounted for 
the increase in the unrestricted balance as of June 30, 2008 of $19.8 
million compared to June 30, 2007. The increase in operating subsidies 
receivables of $23.9 million was primarily related to a delay in the 
receipt of $24.8 million in lease cost subsidies funded by Section 1517 
of the Capital Improvement Program under the new PTTF dedicated 
funds. Capital grant receivables increased $8.6 million primarily due to 
a slight increase in both state and federal capital grant receivables.

Total capital assets increased $462.6 million, less $15.0 million 
retirements, and accumulated depreciation increased $275.5 million, 
less $14.9 million retirements, resulting in a net capital asset increase 
of $187.0 million. Major expenditures during the year were incurred for 
the Market-Frankford Elevated Reconstruction program, R5 Paoli Line 
improvements, revenue vehicle purchases, and the vehicle overhaul 
program.

The decrease in other assets of $303 thousand reflects the current 
year amortization of Special Revenue Bond Costs incurred at the time 
the bonds were issued.

Total liabilities increased $144.9 million primarily due to increases in 
deferred revenue of $95.2 million, other postemployment benefits of 
$97.6 million, accounts payable of $53.2 million, and accrued expenses 
of $8.6 million. Deferred revenue increased $95.2 million primarily 
due to an increase in unearned operating subsidies derived from the 
new Act 44 state funds received, including local match, which will be 
recognized as operating subsidy in Fiscal Year 2009. The accounts 
payable and accrued expense increases were primarily related to 
higher capital payable costs and higher accrued pension liability costs, 
respectively. Offsetting the liability increases were decreases in deferred 
capital grant revenue of $54.2 million, other liabilities of $27.0 million, 
long-term capitalized lease obligations of $18.6 million, and long-term 

debt of $13.6 million. The deferred capital grant revenue decrease 
reflects prior years State Act 3 and Act 26 receipts that were used in the 
current fiscal year to fund capital expenditures, lease costs, and debt 
service requirements. The other liabilities decrease of $27.0 million 
was primarily due to the use of railcar vehicle lease proceeds received 
in previous years to fund the state share on selected capital projects. 
Long-term capitalized lease obligation decreased $18.6 million and 
long-term debt decreased $13.6 million primarily due to lease and 
bond principal payments, respectively, exclusive of amortization of 
discounts and deferred defeasance amounts.

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists 
of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
amount of long-term debt and liabilities attributable to the acquisition 
of those assets. Restricted net assets represents deposits that are 
not available for general use because of third-party restrictions. 
Unrestricted net assets represents net assets that are available for 
general use. Unrestricted net assets increased $79.2 million to a deficit 
amount of $235.5 million primarily due to the current year recognition 
of $97.6 million of additional other postemployment benefit costs in 
connection with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 45. The 
deficit in unrestricted net assets is not expected to have an adverse 
impact on continuing operations primarily due to the amount of 
noncurrent liabilities for other postemployment benefits and public 
liability, property damage, and workers’ compensation claims. These 
liabilities previously served, directly or indirectly, to increase the deficit; 
however, the liability amounts are not expected to be significantly 
liquidated in the upcoming year, which therefore would not require the 
use of monetary assets.

For Fiscal Year 2007, the Authority received help in balancing its 
operating budget through the use of federal surface transportation 
funds of $65.5 million which was transferred and pledged by the State 
and approved by the Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission. 
In order to eliminate the need for taking this type of action to resolve 
budget shortfalls, the State passed Act 44 of 2007 (“Act 44”) to provide 
a dedicated source of funding for the Authority’s operating budget.

In Fiscal Year 2008, the Authority began receiving State funding 
pursuant to Act 44 which was enacted by the State legislature in July 
2007 and signed into law by the Governor on July 18, 2007. This 
legislation established a Public Transportation Trust Fund (“PTTF”) 
in the State Treasury and completely restructured the way public 
transportation was funded in Pennsylvania. The former system of 
funding transit agencies from the State General Fund, Lottery Fund, 
Act 26 of 1991, and Act 3 of 1997 was repealed and replaced with 
the PTTF dedicated fund. The PTTF will provide State funding, in 
conjunction with required local matching funds, for five programs, 
namely: operating, asset improvement, capital improvements, 
programs of statewide significance, and new initiatives. The Authority 
anticipates that the new dedicated funding will provide for a reliable 
and growing source of funds to meet future budgetary needs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (continued)
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Increase
(decrease)

14.0%

11.9%

13.8%

16.6%

4.1%

13.9%

13.9%

0.5%

(14.7%)

0.9%

26.3%

26.3%

 (18.2%)

4.1%

3.2%

Operating revenues

	P assenger

	 Other income

		T  otal operating revenues

Operating expenses

	 Operating expenses excluding depreciation

	 Depreciation

		T  otal operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

	S ubsidies

	N onoperating expenses - net

		T  otal nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Capital contributions

	 Capital grants

		T  otal capital contributions

Increase in net assets

Total net assets, beginning of year

Total net assets, end of year

Changes in Net Assets
(thousands of dollars)

2008

$  392,568

29,914

422,482

1,100,309

275,534

1,375,843

(953,361)

610,574

(11,118)

599,456

441,132

441,132

87,227

2,697,168

$2,784,395

2007

$  344,411

26,735

371,146

943,548

264,563

1,208,111

(836,965)

607,383

(13,040)

594,343

349,193

349,193

106,571

2,590,597

$2,697,168

For the Years 
ended June 30,

Changes in Net Assets. Net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 increased $87.2 million to $2,784.4 million. The increase is 3.2% more 
than the increase for Fiscal Year 2007 as described below. Total operating revenues increased 13.8% to $422.5 million and total operating expenses 
increased 13.9% to $1,375.8 million. 

Passenger revenues increased 14.0% primarily due to an increase in 
ridership and a fare increase implemented in the beginning of Fiscal 
Year 2008. Other income increased 11.9% primarily due to higher real 
estate and advertising revenue.

Subsidies showed a slight increase of 0.5% primarily due to Fiscal 
Year 2008 passenger revenues being higher than anticipated which 
resulted in a reduction of subsidies needed. Although total subsidies 

increased only $3.2 million, the source of the subsidies changed more 
dramatically with passage of the Act 44 legislation. With the repeal of 
the former state system for funding transit, asset maintenance subsides 
received under Act 3 and Act 26 and senior citizen subsidies received 
directly from the state lottery fund were eliminated and replaced 
with the PTTF fund. The PTTF fund also provided sufficient funds to 
eliminate the Authority’s need to have federal surface transportation 
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fully depreciated transit revenue vehicles with new vehicles, security 
equipment, and various infrastructure improvements including the 
Market-Frankford Elevated Reconstruction Program.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. As of June 30, 2008, the Authority’s investment in capital 
assets, which included revenue vehicles, transit facilities, track, roadway 
and signals, was $6,470.9 million. Net of accumulated depreciation 
of $3,068.5 million, net capital assets totaled $3,402.4 million. This 
amount represents a net increase, including additions and disposals 
net of depreciation, of $187.0 million or 5.8% over June 30, 2007.

As of June 30, 2008, the Authority has commitments for various 
unexpended construction and design contracts, primarily related to 
the Market Street Elevated Reconstruction Program, of approximately 
$165 million and commitments for unexpended revenue vehicle 
purchases, for regional rail car, buses, and trackless trolley acquisitions, 
of approximately $485 million. The Authority’s capital budget for Fiscal 
Year 2009 includes capital asset additions in the amount of $306.9 

Increase
(decrease)

18.0%

5.1%

19.2%

8.7%

28.0%

0.3%

4.1%

13.9%

Operating Expenses
(thousands of dollars)

funds transferred and pledged by the state which occurred in Fiscal 
Year 2007 for $65.5 million. As a result of this funding source change 
to the new PTTF fund, federal subsidies decreased $67.0 million, asset 
maintenance subsidies decreased $54.2 million, senior citizen subsidies 
decreased $46.0 million, and local subsidies decreased, primarily due 
to a change in local match requirements under Act 44, by $6.2 million. 
The senior citizen subsidies that continue to be reported are related to 
the state shared ride program. The decreases above were offset by an 

increase in additional state subsidies received of $176.6 million.
Other nonoperating expenses, which consist of interest expense net 

of interest income, decreased 14.7% primarily due to the Authority sale 
and termination of its constant maturity swap contract associated with 
its 1999 series Special Revenue Bonds which resulted in a gain of $5.4 
million, reflected in investment income. Interest expense increased 
$639 thousand primarily due to higher variable interest expense in 
connection with its Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series of 2007.

Transportation

Purchased transportation

Maintenance

Administrative

Public liability and property damage claims

Rent and other

Depreciation

	T otal operating expenses

2008

$  555,947

49,033

318,185

106,955

 43,483

 26,706

275,534

$1,375,843

2007

$  471,070

46,674

266,851

98,377

33,958

26,618

264,563

$1,208,111

For the Years 
ended June 30,

Transportation, maintenance, and administrative expenses increased 
$144.8 million, or 17.3%, primarily due to the impact of recognizing 
$97.6 million of other postemployment benefits costs under GASB 
Statement No. 45 implemented in Fiscal Year 2008. Expenses were 
also higher due to an increase in labor costs of $17.3 million and 
fringe benefit costs of $21.7 million, an increase of 4.1% and 6.6%, 
respectively. The labor increase of 4.1% primarily reflects a wage rate 
increase and the fringe benefit increase of 6.6% reflects higher costs in 
medical, pension, employer payroll taxes, and employee injury claims. 
Higher fuel and material costs increased transportation expenses $5.9 
million and maintenance expenses $4.1 million, respectively.

Purchased transportation expenses increased 5.1% primarily due to 
higher carrier expenses in the current year related to higher fuel costs 
and an increase in passenger trips.

Public liability and property damage claims expense increased 
28.0% primarily due to higher claim settlement costs.

Rent and other expenses increased 0.3% primarily due to higher 
Amtrak track rental costs.

Depreciation increased 4.1% primarily due to the replacement of 
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million. A significant portion of the additions is scheduled for the 
normal replacement and overhaul of transit revenue vehicles, and 
various infrastructure expansion and improvement capital programs, 
including the Market-Frankford Elevated Reconstruction Program.

Debt Administration. As of June 30, 2008, the Authority’s long-term 
debt before reduction for unamortized discount and amounts deferred 
in connection with defeased debt was $357.8 million (or $352.5 million 
net of these reductions), a $14.4 million decrease from June 30, 2007. 
This decrease was due to regularly scheduled debt service payments 
of $8.3 million on the Special Revenue Bonds, series of 1999 and $6.1 
million on the Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 2007.

The indentures for the Special Revenue Bonds and the Variable 
Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds limit the amount of additional bonds 
the Authority may issue so that when combined with all outstanding 
Special Revenue Bonds, 150% of the maximum annual debt service 
requirements generally may not exceed the annual dedicated funding 
received by the Authority from the State. As of June 30, 2008, the debt 
service requirements were less than 50% of this limitation.

CONTACTING THE AUHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our bondholders, 
customers, and other interested parties with a general overview of the 
Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability 
for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the Office of the Chief 
Financial Officer/Treasurer, Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation 
Authority, 1234 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19107-3780.
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		Ass  ets

current assets

	 Unrestricted funds (Note 2)

		  Cash and cash equivalents

		I  nvestments

	R estricted funds (Note 2)

		  Cash and cash equivalents

		I  nvestments

	R eceivables

		  Operating subsidies

		  Capital grants (Note 3)

		  Other

	 Material and supplies

	P repaid expenses

			T   otal current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

	R estricted funds (Note 2)

		  Cash and cash equivalents

		I  nvestments

	 Capital assets, net (Notes 3, 4, 5 & 6)

	 Other

	

			T   otal noncurrent assets
		  TOTAL ASSETS	

2008

$    10,978 

 44,084

 99,566 

 27,161 

 25,492 

 160,194 

 5,541 

 59,804 

 11,921 

 444,741

41,265 

 44,966 

 3,402,440 

 2,700 

 

3,491,371 
$ 3,936,112 

2007

$    12,947

 22,274

 9,584

 23,468

 1,572

 151,622

 7,832

 57,541

 11,310

 298,150

129,907

 57,503

 3,215,465

 3,003

 

3,405,878
$ 3,704,028 

balance sheets
June 30, 2008 and 2007 

(thousands of dollars)

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.
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		L  IABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

	 Current maturities of 

		L  ong-term debt (Note 5)

	A ccounts payable - trade

	A ccrued expenses (Note 7)

	 Current portion of public liability,  
property damage and workers’  
compensation claims (Note 11)

	 Deferred revenue

			T   otal current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

	P ublic liability, property damage and  
		  workers’ compensation claims (Note 11)

	L ong-term debt (Note 5)

	L ong-term capitalized lease obligation (Note 6)

	 Deferred capital grant revenue (Note 3)

	 Other postemployment benefits (Note 8)

	 Other liabilities (Notes 6 and 12)

	 Commitments and contingencies  
		  (Notes 5, 6, 10, 11 and 12)

		T  otal noncurrent liabilities

	T otal liabilities

NET ASSETS

	I nvested in capital assets, net of related debt

	R estricted

	 Unrestricted
		T  otal net assets
		T  OTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2008

$    15,140

 122,153

 136,323

 
 

64,727

156,358

 494,701

 
118,183

 337,311

 11,811

 60,349

 97,612

 31,750

 

 657,016

 1,151,717

3,015,789 

 4,152 

 (235,546)
 2,784,395 

$ 3,936,112

2007

$    14,360

68,999

127,719

 
 

60,358

 61,203

 332,639 

 
118,857 

 351,700 

 30,391 

 114,504 

—

 58,769 

 

 674,221 

 1,006,860

2,849,404 

 4,150 

 (156,386)
 2,697,168 

$ 3,704,028

balance sheets
June 30, 2008 and 2007 

(thousands of dollars) 

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.
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2008

$    392,568 

29,914 

 422,482 

 555,947 

 49,033 

 318,185 

 106,955 

43,483 

 26,706 

 275,534 

 1,375,843 

 (953,361)

 32,620 

 489,909 

 68,243 

 19,802 

— 

 610,574 

 9,365 

 (20,483)

 599,456 

 (353,905)

441,132 

 441,132 

87,227

 

2,697,168 

$  2,784,395

2007

$    344,411 

26,735 

 371,146 

 471,070 

 46,674 

 266,851 

 98,377 

33,958 

 26,618 

 264,563 

 1,208,111 

 (836,965)

 99,597 

 313,329 

 74,457 

 65,776 

 54,224 

 607,383 

 6,804 

 (19,844)

 594,343 

 (242,622)

349,193 

 349,193 

106,571 

 2,590,597 

$  2,697,168

statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets
For the Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 

(thousands of dollars)

OPERATING REVENUES

	P assenger

	 Other income

		T  otal operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

	T ransportation

	P urchased transportation

	 Maintenance

	A dministrative

	P ublic liability and property damage claims (Note 11)

	R ent and other

	 Depreciation

			T   otal operating expenses

Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

	S ubsidies

		  Federal

		S  tate

		L  ocal

		S  enior citizen

		A  sset maintenance

			T   otal

	I nvestment income

	I nterest expense (Note 5)

			T   otal nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Loss before capital grants

CAPITAL GRANTS

	 Capital grants

			T   otal capital grants

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

TOTAL NET ASSETS

	 Beginning

	E nding

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.
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 statements of cash flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

(thousands of dollars)

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
	P assenger receipts
	 Other receipts
	P ayments for wages and employee benefits
	P ayments for fuel and propulsion
	P ayments for public liability & property damage claims
	P ayments for other operating expenses
	N et cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
	R eceipts of operating subsidies
	 (Decrease) in cash overdraft
	N et cash provided by noncapital financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
	 Capital grants received
	 (Decrease) in deferred capital grant revenue
	A cquisition of operating property and construction in progress
	P roceeds from issuance of long-term debt
	R efunding of long-term debt
	 (Decrease) in long-term capitalized lease obligation
	R epayment/reduction of long-term debt
	I nterest paid
	P roceeds from sale of swap
	N et cash used in capital and related financing activities	
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
	P roceeds from sale of investments
	R eceipt of interest
	P urchase of investments
	N et cash (used in) provided by investing activities
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
	 Beginning of year	
	E nd of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
	 Unrestricted
	R estricted
	T otal
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH  

USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
	 Operating loss
	A djustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used 
		  in operating activities:
	 Depreciation
	 Decrease (increase) in receivables
	 (Increase) in materials & supplies
	 (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
	I ncrease (decrease) in accounts payable—trade
	I ncrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities net of other assets
	I ncrease (decrease) in public liability and property damage claims
	I ncrease in other postemployment benefits
	T otal adjustments	
	N et cash used in operating activities

2008

$   397,764 
 30,854 

 (701,318)
 (73,886)
 (36,415)

 (179,504)
 (562,505)

 677,464 
— 

 677,464 

 404,750 
 (54,144)

 (410,379)
 — 
 — 

 (18,580)
 (14,360)
 (20,942)

 5,420 
 (108,235)

 212,210 
 5,432 

 (224,995)
 (7,353)

 (629)

 152,438 
$   151,809

$    10,978 
 140,831 

$   151,809 
 

$  (953,361)
 

 275,534 
 1,919 
 (2,263)

 (611)
 1,506 

 13,464 
 3,695 

 97,612 
 390,856 

$  (562,505) 

2007

$   343,656 
 25,969 

 (664,153)
 (66,762)
 (36,846)

 (190,533)
 (588,669)

 638,092 
 (4,273)

 633,819 

 361,089 
 (19,972)

 (368,195)
 131,675 
 (132,915)

— 
 (16,835)
 (23,678)

 — 
 (68,831)

 138,997 
 9,498 

 (118,185)
 30,310 

 6,629 

 145,809 
$   152,438

$    12,947 
 139,491 

$   152,438 
 

$   (836,965)
 

 264,563 
 (2,772)

 (12,680)
 191 

 (4,812)
 10,614 
 (6,808)

— 
 248,296 

$  (588,669) 

See accompanying notes to Financial Statements.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Nature of Authority

The Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority 
(“Authority” or “SEPTA”), an instrumentality of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania created by the State legislature, operates transportation 
facilities in the five-county Philadelphia metropolitan area which 
encompasses approximately 2,200 square miles. The Authority’s 
operations are accounted for in the following separate divisions: City 
Transit, Regional Rail and Suburban Operations (Victory and Frontier). 
All material interdivisional transactions have been eliminated.

The City Transit Division serves the City of Philadelphia (“City”) 
with a network of 85 subway-elevated, light rail, trackless trolley and bus 
routes, as well as demand response services, providing approximately 
614 thousand passenger trips per day. The Regional Rail Division serves 

The federal funding is pursuant to the Safe, Accountable, 
Flexible, and Efficient Transportation Equity Act - A Legacy for Users 
(“SAFETEA-LU”). SAFETEA-LU was enacted in August 2005 and covers 
funding for Fiscal Years 2004 through 2009. Federal subsidies provide 
for the reimbursement of vehicle, roadway and structure preventive 
maintenance expenses. Prior to Fiscal Year 2008, the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania (“State”) funding was pursuant to Act 26 of 1991 (“Act 
26”) which was enacted by the State legislature in August 1991 and 
required matching local governmental funding in the five-county SEPTA 
region (Bucks, Chester, Delaware, Montgomery and Philadelphia). Act 
26 also provided for additional State, and required matching local 

all five counties with a network of 7 commuter rail lines, providing 
approximately 124 thousand passenger trips per day. The Suburban 
Operations Division serves the western and northern suburbs with 
a network of 46 interurban trolley, light rail and bus routes, as well 
as demand response services, providing approximately 54 thousand 
passenger trips per day.

There are two principal sources of revenue: passenger revenue 
and governmental subsidies. The subsidies are dependent upon 
annual appropriations, which are not determinable in advance, from 
Federal, State and local sources. The subsidies for Fiscal Years 2008 
and 2007 are summarized as follows:

governmental funding, based on a portion of certain State taxes which 
were effective starting October 1, 1991. The additional dedicated 
funding was used for Asset Maintenance operating expenditures, State-
approved capital expenditures as defined by Act 26, and debt service 
payments. In December 1993, Act 26 also was amended by Act 81 of 
1993 to permit the use of Asset Maintenance funds up to the maximum 
amount projected and eligible for approval under Act 26 when it was 
enacted in 1991. In April 1997, Act 3 of 1997 was enacted to provide 
for additional State funding, and required matching local governmental 
funding, which was used for operating, asset maintenance and capital 
expenditures.

notes to financial statements 
(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)

June 30, 2008 and 2007

Federal subsidies:

	P reventive maintenance reimbursements

State and local subsidies:

	A ct 44 operating subsidies

	A ct 26/3/44 leasehold/debt service reimbursements

	A ct 26 base operating subsidies

	A ct 3 operating subsidies

Senior citizen subsidies

Asset maintenance state and local subsidies:

	A ct 26 subsidies

	A ct 3 subsidies

		T  otal subsidies

2008

$  32,620

496,664

61,488

—

—

19,802

—

—

$ 610,574

2007

$  99,597

—

278,492

81,133

28,161

65,776

41,715

12,509

$ 607,383

SOUTHEASTERN PENNSYLVANIA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
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Basis of Presentation and Nature of Authority (Continued)

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2008, State funding is pursuant to Act 
44 of 2007 (“Act 44”). Act 44 was enacted by the State legislature 
in July 2007 and signed into law by the Governor on July 18, 2007. 
This legislation established a Public Transportation Trust Fund (“PTTF”) 
in the State Treasury and completely restructures the way public 
transportation is funded in Pennsylvania. The former system of funding 
transit agencies from the State General Fund, Lottery Fund, Act 26 
of 1991, and Act 3 of 1997 has been repealed and replaced with the 
PTTF dedicated fund. The PTTF provides State funding, in conjunction 
with required local governmental matching funds, from the five-county 
SEPTA region for five programs namely: operating, asset improvement, 
capital improvements, programs of statewide significance, and new 
initiatives.

State funding represents the largest single source of subsidy 
revenue and the City is the largest single provider of local subsidies. 
Senior Citizen subsidies are primarily funded by the State and beginning 
in Fiscal Year 2008 only includes subsidies related to the State Shared 
Ride program. It is the Authority’s policy to record all subsidies on a 
basis consistent with the time period specified in the governmental 
grant for federal and state subsidies. Local government subsidies were 
recorded based upon the matching funding requirements of Act 44, 
Act 26, and Act 3.

Accounting and Financial Reporting

The Authority follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments” (GASB 
Statement No. 34), which requires a Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis to provide an analytical overview and discussion of financial 
activities. Additionally, GASB Statement No. 34 requires net assets to 
be classified as: invested in capital assets net of related debt, restricted 
and unrestricted. The cash flow statement is prepared using the direct 
method.

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as applied to government units. Revenues 
are recognized in the period in which they are earned and expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred. The Authority 
distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating 
items in the preparation of its financial statements. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from the Authority’s principal operation 
of providing passenger service. The principal operating revenues are 
passenger fares and essentially all operating expenses relate to the 
delivery of passenger transportation. All other revenues and expenses 
are reported as nonoperating revenues or expenses, or capital 
contributions.

The Authority has elected an alternative which exempts the 
Authority from adherence to the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Statements and Interpretations and other related opinions and 
bulletins issued after November 30, 1989.

Other Postemployment Benefits

During Fiscal Year 2008, the Authority adopted Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, “Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions” (“GASB Statement No. 45”). The statement establishes 
standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other 
postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) expense/expenditures and related 
liabilities and note disclosures. The statement requires recognition of 
the cost of OPEB in the periods when the related employees’ services 
are received and requires reporting certain information, such as funding 
policy and actuarial evaluation process and assumptions. The impact of 
GASB Statement No. 45 is more fully described in Note 8.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.

Renewal and Replacement

Certain agreements with the City require the Authority to provide 
a portion of its gross revenues to be used for renewal and replacements 
of operating property, including, when approved, the matching of State 
or federal grant funding for the acquisition of capital assets. These 
funds are included in the cash and investments of the Authority.

Investments

The Authority accounts for investments at fair value. Fair value 
is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. Investments are more fully 
described in Note 2.

Materials and Supplies

The inventory of materials and supplies of maintenance parts is 
valued on an average cost basis. 

Capital Assets

It is the Authority’s policy to capitalize and depreciate capital 
assets acquired with capital grants, renewal and replacement and other 
operating funds, as more fully described in Note 4.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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Pensions

The Authority maintains five trusteed, single-employer, defined 
benefit pension plans covering substantially all of its full-time 
employees, other than regional rail union employees. Regional 
rail union employees are covered under pension provisions of the 
Railroad Retirement Act. In Fiscal Year 2008, the Authority adopted 
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures - an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27. The adoption 
of this statement had no effect on previously reported amounts. The 
pension plans are more fully described in Note 7.

Self-Insurance

The Authority provides for the present value of the self-
insurance portion of public liability, property damage and workers’ 
compensation claims, as more fully described in Note 11.

Grants and Subsidies

All capital grants, meeting the timing and eligibility requirements 
of the grant agreement, are recorded as an increase in the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Authority 
considers cash equivalents to be all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of ninety days or less at the time of purchase.

Reclassifications

Certain Fiscal Year 2007 amounts have been reclassified to 
conform to the Fiscal Year 2008 presentation.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)



31

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The investments in the accompanying financial statements are reported at fair value.

The components of cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 are:

The components of investments as of June 30 are:

Cash on hand

Cash in bank

Money market funds

Commercial paper

Outstanding checks

Total cash and cash equivalents

Less current portion—unrestricted

Less current portion—restricted

Total noncurrent portion—restricted

2008

$   2,923

3,821

140,983

21,030

( 16,948)

151,809

10,978

99,566

 $  41,265

2007

$   2,101

 42,731

115,024

9,480

( 16,898)

152,438

12,947

9,584 

 $ 129,907

U.S. Government and agencies

Commercial paper

Mutual funds

Guaranteed investment contract

Total investments

Less current portion—unrestricted

Less current portion—restricted

Total noncurrent portion—restricted

2008

$  49,972

11,926

42,502

11,811

116,211

44,084

27,161

$  44,966

2007

$  34,182

 23,468

15,204

30,391

103,245

22,274

23,468

$  57,503

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

The Authority has set aside cash, cash equivalents and investments primarily to provide for the payment of a portion of its future obligations. 
These include amounts restricted primarily for: State dedicated funds in accordance with Act 26, Act 3, Act 44 and contractual agreements 
between the Authority and external parties. The amounts restricted, as of June 30, are as follows:

As of June 30, 2008, allowable investments of the Authority were 
specified by Act 3 of 1994 (“Act 3”). In general, the Authority may invest 
in obligations of the U. S. Government and its agencies, repurchase 
agreements, which are secured by investments allowable by Act 3, and 
mutual funds which invest in the foregoing items. Act 3 does specifically 
limit investments in municipal bonds and commercial paper to any 
of the three highest and the highest rating categories, respectively, 
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. All the 
Authority’s investment transactions are executed with recognized and 
established securities dealers and commercial banks, and conducted 
in the open market at competitive prices.

As of June 30, 2008, the Authority’s investments in the bonds of 
U.S. agencies were rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s. The investments 
in commercial paper were rated A1+/P1 by Standard & Poor’s and in 
money market funds and mutual funds were rated Aaa by Moody’s 
Investor Service. The Authority’s general investment policy is to apply 
the prudent-person rule while adhering to the investment restrictions 
as prescribed in Act 3, the Authority’s enabling legislation: Investments 

are made as a prudent person would be expected to act, with discretion 
and intelligence, to seek reasonable income, preserve capital, and, in 
general, avoid speculative investments.

The Authority places no limit on the amount the Authority may 
invest in any one issuer. More than five percent of the Authority’s cash 
equivalents and investments are in the Federal Home Loan Bank, Black 
Rock Liquidity Funds - FedFund money market and mutual funds, as 
well as Fidelity Government Portfolio money market and mutual funds 
and Enterprise Funding commercial paper. These investments are 
16.16%, 50.46%, 11.01% and 5.92%, respectively, of the Authority’s 
total investments.

For a deposit, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of 
a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned to it. As 
of June 30, 2008, $3,721 of the Authority’s cash in bank of $3,821 was 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, 
or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Authority’s name.

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the 
event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not be able 

2008

$   26,373

31,330

93,024

13,368

20,335

 

6,565

4,667

 
11,811

 
1,163

4,322

$  212,958

Restricted:

	S tate dedicated funding provided by Act 26, including local match

	S tate funding provided by Act 3, including local match

	S tate dedicated funding provided by Act 44, including local match

	 Debt service funds:

		S  pecial Revenue Bonds, Series of 2007

		S  pecial Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A and 1999B

	L ease/leaseback transaction proceeds to be used for capital or 
		  operating needs which require FTA approval:

			S   ubway-elevated rail cars

			L   ight rail cars

	L ease/leaseback guaranteed investment contract to be used for 
		  payment of long-term lease obligation

	 Cross border lease transaction proceeds to be used for capital or  
		  operating needs which require FTA approval

	S ecurity deposits and other

	T otal	

2007

$   67,427

46,064

—

12,506

20,547

 

20,340

17,711

 
30,391

 
1,163

4,313

$  220,462

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2008, $195,296 of the 
Authority’s cash equivalent and investment balance of $278,224 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

The money market funds and mutual funds invest solely in 
securities that are issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government, 
its agencies or instrumentalities. Fund shares are not insured or 
guaranteed. G.I.C.’s are contracts with a financial institution and not 
a security subject to insurance or guarantee. SEPTA’s policy requires 
that all deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized to 
the extent not protected by F.D.I.C. insurance and in accordance with 
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act No. 72 of 1971. Securities 
that can be accepted as collateral are limited to U.S. Government 
Securities, Federal Agency Securities and Municipal Securities. Also, 
in accordance with its policy, SEPTA’s investments, except for money 
market funds, mutual funds and the G.I.C., are held in the Authority’s 
name by a third-party safe-keeping custodian that is separate from the 

counterparty or in the custody of a trust department, as required by 
bond covenants.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Duration is a measure of 
an investment’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates and is a measure 
of the cash-weighted average term to maturity of the investment. 
The higher the duration, the greater the changes in fair value when 
interest rates change. The Authority measures interest rate risk using 
effective duration expressed in years. Effective duration takes into 
consideration the changes in expected cash flows for securities with 
embedded options or redemption features, when prevailing interest 
rates change. As of June 30, 2008 the Authority had the following 
investments in its portfolio:

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

$ 140,983

42,502

11,811

$ 195,296

Money market funds

Mutual funds

Guaranteed investment contract (G.I.C.)

Total

Investment type

	 U.S. agencies

	 Commercial paper

	 Money market funds

	 Mutual funds

	A ccrued interest

	T otal fair value including accrued interest

	P ortfolio effective duration

Fair Value

$  49,814

32,956

140,983

42,502

266,255

158

$ 266,413

Effective 
Duration

0.137

0.317

0.003

0.003

0.067

In addition to the above, investments include a guaranteed investment contract which matures January 2, 2030 and is fully collateralized with 
marketable securities.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)

Through its investment policy, the Authority manages its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates by limiting the 
effective duration of its operating cash investments to less than six 
months, and its entire invested portfolio to less than one year. The 
Authority’s operating cash invested at fiscal year-end was $5.5 million 

with an effective duration of 0.003 years. The Authority’s entire invested 
portfolio at fiscal year-end was $266.4 million with an effective duration 
of 0.067 years.

The nature and composition of the Authority’s deposits and 
investments during the year were similar to those at year-end.
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Beginning 
Balance

$114,504

$159,197

Ending 
Balance

$ 60,349

$114,504

2008

2007

Investment 
Earnings

$ 4,330

$ 7,225

Funding 
Additions

$  —
$166,357

Disbursements

$ 58,485

$218,275

3. Capital Contributions and Grants
Capital Contributions and Grants Received

Under the Federal Transit Act, as amended, the United States 
Department of Transportation (“U.S. DOT”), the State and the local 
governments have approved capital grants aggregating approximately 
$6.3 billion from inception to June 30, 2008 for the modernization and 
replacement of existing transportation facilities and the acquisition of 
transit vehicles. At June 30, 2008, the Authority had incurred costs 
of approximately $5.8 billion against these grants of which $441.1 
million and $349.2 million were incurred in Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007, 
respectively.

The terms of these grants require, among other things, the 
Authority to utilize the equipment and facilities for the purpose 
specified in the grant agreement, maintain these items in operation 
for a specified time period, which normally approximates the useful 
life of the asset, and comply with the equal employment opportunity 
and affirmative action programs as required by the Federal Transit 
Act. Failure to comply with these terms may jeopardize future funding 
and require the Authority to refund a portion of these grants to the 
U.S. DOT. In management’s opinion, the Authority is in substantial 
compliance with these requirements as of June 30, 2008.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)

Deferred Capital Grant Revenue

Deferred capital grant revenue relates principally to unexpended State dedicated funding received pursuant to Act 26 and Act 3. Annual 
changes for Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
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June 30, 
2007

$ 1,612,614

1,869,907

2,004,180

431,234

5,917,935

41,327

64,000

6,023,262

2,786,924

20,873

2,807,797

$ 3,215,465

Retirements

$  24,820

—

—

3,311

28,131

—

—

28,131

28,091

—

28,091

$     40

Additions

$   38,525

156,699

60,703

25,262

281,189

—

73,263

354,452

263,080

1,483

264,563

$   89,889

June 30, 
2006

$ 1,582,275

1,689,296

1,926,037

409,265

5,606,873

41,327

48,741

5,696,941

2,551,935

19,390

2,571,325

$ 3,125,616

June 30, 
2008

$ 1,686,816

2,060,614

2,134,605

445,453

6,327,488

41,327

102,098

6,470,913

3,046,116

22,357

3,068,473

$ 3,402,440

4. Capital Assets
Capital assets are summarized as follows:

Capital Assets

	R evenue vehicles

	T ransit facilities, rail stations & depots

	T rack, roadway & signals

	 Other

Total

Capital leases—revenue vehicles

Construction in progress

Total

Accumulated depreciation

	P roperty and equipment

	 Capital leases

Total

Capital assets, net

June 30, 
2007

$ 1,612,614

1,869,907

2,004,180

431,234

5,917,935

41,327

64,000

6,023,262

2,786,924

20,873

2,807,797

$ 3,215,465

Reclassifications

$   23,668

19,192

1,007

(389)

43,478

—

(43,478)

—

—

—

—

$    —

Additions

$   64,149

171,515

129,418

15,964

381,046

—

81,576

462,622

274,050

1,484

275,534

$  187,088

Retirements

$  13,615

—

—

1,356

14,971

—

—

14,971

14,858

—

14,858

$    113

Capital Assets

	R evenue vehicles

	T ransit facilities, rail stations & depots

	T rack, roadway & signals

	 Other

Total

Capital leases—revenue vehicles

Construction in progress

Total

Accumulated depreciation

	P roperty and equipment

	 Capital leases

Total

Capital assets, net

Reclassifications

$   16,634

23,912

17,440

18

58,004

—

(58,004)

—

—

—

—

$    —

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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4. Capital Assets (continued)

Capital assets are acquired with capital grants, renewal and 
replacement and other operating funds and are stated at cost. 
Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are 
generally 12 to 30 years for revenue vehicles, 30 years for structures, 
track and roadway, and 4 to 10 years for signals and other equipment. 
Vehicle overhaul costs are capitalized and depreciated as capital assets 
over the extended useful lives of the vehicles estimated at 4 or 5 years. 
Amortization of capital leases is included in depreciation expense.

As of June 30, 2008, construction in progress principally consists 
of infrastructure improvements and revenue vehicles which will be 
primarily funded by capital grants.

As of June 30, 2008, the Authority has commitments for 
unexpended construction contracts, primarily related to the Market 
Street Elevated Reconstruction Program, of approximately $165 million 
and commitments for unexpended revenue vehicle purchases, for 
regional rail car and trackless trolley acquisitions, of approximately $485 
million.

5. Long-Term Debt 
Long-term debt consists of the following:

Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 2007, 
due in varying amounts through 2022

Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A and 1999B, due in 
varying amounts through 2029, with annual interest from 
4.75% to 5.25%

	L ess unamortized bond premium, net of discount

	L ess amounts deferred in connection with refunded debt

Total

June 30, 
2007 

$ 131,675

 
 

240,440

372,115

1,304

(7,359)

$ 366,060

Payments/ 
Reductions 

$   6,075

 
 

8,285

14,360

145

(896)

$  13,609

Due Within  
One Year 

$   6,425

 
 

8,715

$  15,140

June 30, 
2008 

$ 125,600

 
 

232,155

357,755

1,159

(6,463)

$ 352,451

Additions 

$    —

 
 

—

—

—

—

$    —

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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5. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 2007, 
due in varying amounts through 2022

Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A and 1999B, due in 
varying amounts through 2029, with annual interest from 
4.75% to 5.25%

Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1997, due in varying 
amounts through 2022, with annual interest from 5.35% 
to 5.75%

Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1995A and 1995B, due in 
varying amounts through 2020, with annual interest from 
5.75% to 8.75%

	L ess unamortized bond premium (discount), net

	L ess amounts deferred in connection with refunded debt

Total

June 30, 
2006 

$   —

 
 

248,330

 
 

132,915

 
 

8,945

390,190

(178)

(3,101)

$ 386,911

Payments/ 
Reductions 

$   —

 
 

7,890

 
 

132,915

 
 

8,945

149,750

(1,482)

(562)

$ 147,706

Due Within 
One Year 

$    6,075

 
 

8,285

 
 

—

 
 

—

$   14,360

June 30, 
2007 

$ 131,675

 
 

240,440

 
 

—

 
 

—

372,115

1,304

(7,359)

$ 366,060

Additions 

$ 131,675

 
 

—

 
 

—

 
 

—

131,675

—

(4,820)

$ 126,855

In 1968, the Authority and the City entered into concurrent lease 
agreements whereby the Authority leased the former Philadelphia 
Transportation Company owned properties, which the Authority 
acquired in 1968, to the City and the City leased those properties, 
as well as certain City-owned transit properties, to the Authority. 
The agreements provide for the City to make rental payments to the 
Authority in amounts equal to the debt service (principal and interest) 
on the Authority’s Rental Revenue Bonds which matured during Fiscal 
Year 2003. Also, the Authority has paid fixed rent to the City in the 
amounts necessary to meet the debt service on the self-supporting City 
bonds. The final fixed rent payment was made in 2005 as planned. The 
Authority will also pay to the City, out of the net revenues from leased 

property, cumulative additional rent in amounts equal to the debt 
service on the Authority’s Rental Revenue Bonds and non-cumulative 
additional rents. The Authority’s obligation to meet the cumulative 
additional rent requirements has been forgiven with the exception 
of fiscal years 1969, 1970 and 1995 through 1998 and fiscal years 
2001 through 2003. The Authority has paid the cumulative additional 
rent for fiscal years 1995 and 1996. The Authority has an unrecorded 
contingent liability for cumulative additional rent for 1969, 1970, 1997, 
1998, and 2001 through 2003 totaling approximately $24.7 million. 
These leases were to expire when the Authority would make the last 
payment of fixed rent or cumulative additional rent, or December 31, 
2005, whichever would be later.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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5. Long-Term Debt (continued)

It is and has been the Authority’s position that the lease and 
leaseback agreements did not expire on December 31, 2005, but that, 
in accordance with their terms, the agreements continue in full force 
and effect, inter alia, while cumulative additional rent and debt service 
on the Authority’s bonds remain outstanding. In October 2005 the 
Authority and the City entered into a standstill agreement by which 
they agreed that the lease and leaseback agreements would remain in 
full force and effect during the term of the standstill agreement without 
waiver, admission or prejudice to the parties’ respective positions. The 
standstill agreement, initially in effect until December 31, 2007, was 
extended until December 31, 2008.

In February 1995, the Authority issued $117.9 million of Special 
Revenue Bonds, Series of 1995A (“1995A Bonds”) and 1995B (“1995B 
Bonds”), due in varying amounts through 2020, with annual interest 
from 4.6% to 8.75%. The net proceeds of the bonds were used to 
refinance certain debt obligations, to reimburse the Authority for the 
costs of certain capital projects previously paid from operating funds 
and to make required deposits into the debt service reserve fund. 
During Fiscal Year 1996, the maximum annual debt service payment 
amount of $9.4 million was insured under a municipal bond debt 
service reserve fund policy and the debt service fund deposit was then 
made available for capital project expenditures. The 1995A Bonds and 
1995B Bonds were secured by dedicated funding received pursuant 
to Act 26. In February 2007, the Authority called and retired the 
outstanding balance of these bonds, and consequently there was no 
remaining balance at June 30, 2007 or 2008.

In May 1997, the Authority issued $170.2 million of Special 
Revenue Bonds, Series of 1997 (“1997 Bonds”), due in varying 
amounts through 2022, with annual interest from 4.00% to 5.75%. The 
net proceeds of the bonds were used to reimburse the Authority for 

a portion of the costs of certain capital projects; refund certain leases 
entered into by the Authority for a building and related equipment; 
pay the costs of certain capital projects and pay the premium for a debt 
service reserve fund insurance policy. The 1997 Bonds were secured 
by dedicated funding received pursuant to Act 26. On March 1, 2007 
the Authority issued Variable Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
of 2007, and retired the 1997 Bonds with the proceeds of the bond 
issuance.

In February 1999, the Authority issued $262.0 million of Special 
Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A (“1999A Bonds”) and 1999B (“1999B 
Refunding Bonds”), due in varying amounts through 2029, with annual 
interest from 3.25% to 5.25%. The net proceeds of the 1999A Bonds 
were used to finance a portion of the Market-Frankford subway-
elevated line vehicle acquisition program; refinance a bridge loan for 
payment of a portion of the vehicle acquisition program; reimburse 
the Authority for a portion of the costs of certain capital projects and 
pay a portion of the premium for a debt service reserve fund insurance 
policy. The net proceeds of the 1999B Refunding Bonds were used 
to refund $73.2 million of the 1995A Bonds, and pay a portion of the 
premium for a debt service reserve fund insurance policy.

In March 2007, the Authority issued $131.7 million of Variable 
Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series of 2007 (“2007 Bonds”), due in 
varying amounts through 2022. The net proceeds of these Bonds were 
used to refund the Authority’s outstanding 1997 Bonds and pay the 
premium for a debt service reserve fund insurance policy. Concurrent 
with the issuance of the 2007 Bonds, the Authority entered into a pay-
fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap, with a notional amount of 
$131.7 million, as more fully described in Note 12.

The 1999A Bonds, the 1999B Refunding Bonds and the 2007 
Bonds are secured by dedicated funding received pursuant to Act 44.

Aggregate maturities of the above described long-term debt are as follows:

Debt maturities

Debt related interest

Debt maturities

Debt related interest

2009

$ 15,140

$ 17,531

2014 - 2018

$107,425

$ 56,581

2011

$ 16,700

$ 15,996

2024 - 2028

$ 53,195

$ 10,712

2010

$ 15,885

$ 16,782

2019 - 2023

$101,240

$ 28,277

2012

$ 17,545

$ 15,170

2029

$ 12,200

$    580

2013

$ 18,425

$ 14,289

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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Leased property consists primarily of transit properties and 
equipment. Leased transit properties which are related to long-term 
debt obligations are described in Note 5. The leased properties, 
described within this note, are the cross border leases, lease/leaseback 
agreements and operating leases.

Cross Border Leases 

In June 1994 and December 1994, the Authority entered into 
cross border leasing agreements and other related agreements 
(collectively the “Agreements”) with a credit company incorporated in 
Sweden and others for a total of twenty-six N-5 High Speed Line Cars. 
The Agreements provided for the Authority to sell and lease back the 
N-5 cars for a period of fifteen years. The Authority deposited funds 
into an irrevocable trust sufficient to meet all of its payment obligations, 
throughout the term of the lease. Accordingly, the required lease 
payments have not been reflected in the balance sheets. As of June 
30, 2008, the present value of the lease obligation was $35.2 million.

Lease/leaseback Agreements

During Fiscal Year 2002, the Authority entered into a head lease 
agreement to lease for approximately 28 years 219 rail cars, that are 
currently in service on the Market-Frankford subway-elevated line, 
and simultaneously lease the vehicles back. The Authority received 
prepayments under the head lease of $336.1 million, of which it paid 
$269.9 million to two debt payment undertakers to defease rents 
payable under the debt portion of the agreement, $41.6 million to the 
equity payment undertaker to defease rents payable under the equity 
portion of the agreement, and $3.2 million in transaction expenses. 
The rental obligations under the lease/leaseback, except for $30.4 
million paid under the debt portion of the lease, - which amount is 
$11.8 million as of June 30, 2008, are considered to be defeased in 
substance and therefore the related debt, as well as the trust assets, 
have been excluded from the Authority’s financial statements. The 
proceeds, net of expenses, from the transaction of $21.4 million are 

being used, starting in Fiscal Year 2007, as reimbursement of state 
share on capital grants, which use has been approved by the Federal 
Transit Administration. The leaseback includes a purchase option, 
which upon exercise will be funded in installments, from funds used 
to defease the debt, during the period from January 2, 2030 through 
December 15, 2030, that will allow the Authority to buy out the equity 
investor’s remaining rights under the agreement, thereby terminating 
the entire transaction.

During Fiscal Year 2003, the Authority entered into a head lease 
agreement with three equity investors to lease for approximately 20 years 
138 light rail vehicles that are currently in service, and simultaneously 
lease the vehicles back. The Authority received prepayments under 
the head leases of $303.6 million, of which it paid $240.2 million to 
the debt payment undertaker to defease rents payable under the debt 
portion of the agreement, $47.9 million in security to the collateral 
agent to defease rents payable under the equity collateral security 
agreement, and $0.1 million in transaction expenses. The rental 
obligations under the lease/leaseback are considered to be defeased 
in substance and therefore the related debt, as well as the trust assets, 
have been excluded from the Authority’s financial statements. The 
proceeds, net of expenses, from the transaction of $15.4 million are 
being used, starting in Fiscal Year 2007, as reimbursement of State 
share on capital grants, which use has been approved by the Federal 
Transit Administration. The leaseback includes a purchase option, 
which upon exercise will be funded in installments, from funds used 
to defease the debt, during the period from January 5, 2022 through 
December 15, 2023, that will allow the Authority to buy out the equity 
investor’s remaining rights under the agreement, thereby terminating 
the entire transaction.

The above cross border and lease/leaseback transactions, 
including changes for Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007, are included, as are 
unamortized swaption proceeds, in the following liabilities:

6. Leases

Other Liabilities

2008

2007

Beginning 
Balance

$ 58,769

$ 60,512

Investment 
Earnings

$  1,791

$  3,302

Ending 
Balance

$ 31,750

$ 58,769

Reductions *

$ (28,810)

$ ( 5,045)

Operating Leases 

The Authority leases equipment and utility vehicles, with leases expiring at various dates through 2008. Rental expense for these operating 
leases was $2.1 million for both Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007.

* Includes reductions of lease/leaseback agreement and swaption proceeds.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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for the bargaining union plans are based on the respective union 
agreements in effect during the period of employment. Administrative 
costs of all pension plans are financed through the plans’ investment 
earnings.

The Authority and plan members’ contribution rates of annual 
covered payroll for each plan for Fiscal Year 2008 are as follows:

Retirees and beneficiaries 
	 receiving benefits

Termintated plan members entitled 	
	 to but not yet receiving benefits

Active plan members

		T  otal 

City 
Transit

 
2,508

 
893

4,966

8,367

Transit 
Police

 
5

 
48

197

250

 
Frontier

 
18

 
28

201

247

Red 
Arrow

 
227

 
112

485

824

 
Total

 
3,876

 
1,626

7,590

13,092

SAM

 
1,118

 
545

1,741

3,404

Contribution rates:

	SEPTA

	P lan members

City 
Transit

13.70%

2.00%

Transit 
Police

7.80%

3.85%

 
Frontier

5.93%

2.00%

Red 
Arrow

9.81%

2.00%

SAM

24.25%

*

* 0.9% of pay up to Social Security covered compensation plus 1.1% of pay in excess of Social Security covered compensation.

7. Pension Plans
Plan Description

The Authority maintains five trusteed, single-employer, defined 
benefit pension plans covering substantially all of its full-time 
employees, other than regional rail union employees. Regional rail 
union employees are covered under pension provisions of the Railroad 
Retirement Act. The Authority’s five single-employer pension plans 
are as follows: Retirement Plan for Supervisory, Administrative and 
Management Employees (SAM), Retirement Plan for Transit Police 
(TP), and Pension Plans for Certain Bargaining Employees - City Transit 
Division (CTD), Red Arrow Division (RAD) and Frontier Division (FD). 
Each of the plans provide retirement, disability and death benefits 
based on an employee’s years of service, age and compensation.

An employee (except for transit police) may retire at age 62 with 
completion of 5 years of credited service or age 55 with 30 years of 
credited service. The normal retirement eligibility for certain bargaining 
unit employees who may retire at age 55 with 30 years of credited 
service changed to the completion of 30 years of credited service 

Funding Policy

The Authority establishes and may amend the employer 
contribution requirements. The Authority’s policy provides employer 
contributions for all plans sufficient to satisfy the actuarially determined 
annual required contributions generally in either the current or 
subsequent fiscal year. The Authority may amend the contribution 
requirements of SAM Plan members. The contribution requirements 

with no restriction on age. The change in retirement eligibility became 
effective as follows: for CTD Plan employees represented by TWU, Local 
234 (March 15, 2000) and IBT, Local 500 (June 1, 2000) and RAD Plan 
employees represented by TWU, Local 234 (April 2, 2000) and UTU, 
Local 1594 (April 5, 2001) and FD Plan employees represented by TWU, 
Local 234 (April 8, 2000). A transit police employee may retire at age 50 
with completion of 25 years of credited service. An employee’s pension 
benefit is based on a formula that uses average annual compensation. 
Employees vest after five years of credited service.

The SEPTA Board has the authority to establish and amend 
benefit provisions to each of the pension plans; however, the plans for 
Transit Police and Certain Bargaining Employees - CTD, RAD and FD 
are based on the respective union bargaining agreement in effect at 
the time of retirement. 

Membership of each plan consisted of the following at July 1, 
2007, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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Annual Pension Cost 

Contributions made

Increase in accrued pension liability

Accrued pension liability,  
	 beginning of year

Accrued pension liability,  
	 end of year

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

	I nvestment rate of return*

	S alary increases*

	 Cost-of-living adjustments

7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Related Information

The Authority’s annual pension cost and related information for Fiscal Year 2008 were as follows:

City 
Transit

$35,690

 33,091

 2,599

  
32,807

 
$35,406

7/1/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

Actuarial

value

8.00%

5.00%

None

Transit 
Police

$ 779

 683

  96

  
679

 
$ 775

7/1/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

Actuarial

value

8.00%

5.00%

None

 
Frontier

$ 556

 493

  63 

  
491

 
$ 554

7/1/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

Actuarial

value

8.00%

5.00%

None

Red 
Arrow

$ 2,620

 2,429

  191

  
2,411

 
$ 2,602

7/1/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

Actuarial

value

8.00%

5.00%

None

 
Total

$68,464

 61,941

 6,523

  
61,477

 
$68,000

SAM

$28,819

 25,245

3,574 

  
25,089

 
$28,663

7/1/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

Actuarial

value

8.00%

5.25%

None

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)

	 * Reflects underlying inflation assumption of 2.75%.
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7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

SAM
SAM
SAM
SAM
SAM
SAM
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL

Percentage of APC 
Contributed

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100 0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

Annual Pension 
Cost (APC)

$28,819
$25,245
$22,971
$19,104
$19,179
$17,046

  779
  683
  680
  474
  386
  372

 35,690
 33,091
 29,898
 26,426
 26,412
 25,007
 2,620
 2,429
 2,135
 1,844
 1,807
 1,718
  556
  493
  411
  309
  311
  288

$68,464
$61,941
$56,095
$48,157
$48,095
$44,431

Year 
Ended

6/30/08
6/30/07
6/30/06
6/30/05
6/30/04
6/30/03
6/30/08
6/30/07
6/30/06
6/30/05
6/30/04
6/30/03
6/30/08
6/30/07
6/30/06
6/30/05
6/30/04
6/30/03
6/30/08
6/30/07
6/30/06
6/30/05
6/30/04
6/30/03
6/30/08
6/30/07
6/30/06
6/30/05
6/30/04
6/30/03
6/30/08
6/30/07
6/30/06
6/30/05
6/30/04
6/30/03

The percentage of annual pension cost contributed is based on the contribution accrued. The Authority’s current practice, in accordance 
with its funding policy, is to contribute the actuarially determined annual required contributions during the successive fiscal year.

Analysis of Pension Funding

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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SAM
SAM
SAM
SAM
SAM
SAM
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
Transit Police
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
City Transit
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Red Arrow
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
Frontier
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL
	T OTAL

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL)
-Level Dollar

(b)
$  498,208
$  444,031
$  409,221
$  367,338
$  349,133
$  332,131

 15,089
 13,103
 11,678
  9,488
  8,011
  7,276

 620,111
 573,726
 529,954
 483,964
 460,894
 440,265
 46,495
 42,963
 39,122
 35,911
 33,455
 32,208
  9,647
  8,271
  7,064
  5,990
  5,539
  5,025

$1,189,550
$1,082,094
$  997,039
$  902,691
$  857,032
$  816,905

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(b - a)

$142,817
$124,522
$112,967
$ 88,918
$ 84,166
$ 70,275

   786
  1,069
  1,442
   702
   329
   403

 240,255
 229,082
 207,212
 179,414
 171,584
 158,037
 16,659
 16,320
 14,464
 12,868
 11,576
 10,700
  1,155
  1,133
   901
   633
   859
   815

$401,672
$372,126
$336,986
$282,535
$268,514
$240,230

Funded
Ratio

 (a / b)
71.3%
72.0%
72.4%
75.8%
75.9%
78.8%
94.8%
91.8%
87.7%
92.6%
95.9%
94.5%
61.3%
60.1%
60.9%
62.9%
62.8%
64.1%
64.2%
62.0%
63.0%
64.2%
65.4%
66.8%
88.0%
86.3%
87.2%
89.4%
84.5%
83.8%
66.2%
65.6%
66.2%
68.7%
68.7%
70.6%

Covered
Payroll

 (c)
$118,832
$116,268
$115,571
$115,174
$112,760
$108,369

  9,983
  9,886
  9,770
  9,989
  8,804
  8,738

 260,569
 247,744
 247,031
 242,426
 236,333
 228,538
 26,704
 24,813
 24,900
 24,658
 23,362
 22,968
  9,386
  8,863
  8,426
  8,148
  7,745
  7,428

$425,474
$407,574
$405,698
$400,395
$389,004
$376,041

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered Payroll
( (b - a) / c)

120.2%
107.1%

97.7%
77.2%
74.6%
64.8%
 7.9%

10.8%
14.8%
 7.0%
 3.7%
 4.6%

92.2%
92.5%
83.9%
74.0%
72.6%
69.2%
62.4%
65.8%
58.1%
52.2%
49.6%
46.6%
12.3%
12.8%
10.7%
 7.8%

11.1%
11.0%
94.4%
91.3%
83.1%
70.6%
69.0%
63.9%

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)
$355,391
$319,509
$296,254
$278,420
$264,967
$261,856

 14,303
 12,034
 10,236
  8,786
  7,682
  6,873

 379,856
 344,644
 322,742
 304,550
 289,310
 282,228
 29,836
 26,643
 24,658
 23,043
 21,879
 21,508
  8,492
  7,138
  6,163
  5,357
  4,680
  4,210

$787,878
$709,968
$660,053
$620,156
$588,518
$576,675

Actuarial
Valuation

Date 
7/1/07
7/1/06
7/1/05
7/1/04
7/1/03
7/1/02
7/1/07
7/1/06
7/1/05
7/1/04
7/1/03
7/1/02
7/1/07
7/1/06
7/1/05
7/1/04
7/1/03
7/1/02
7/1/07
7/1/06
7/1/05
7/1/04
7/1/03
7/1/02
7/1/07
7/1/06
7/1/05
7/1/04
7/1/03
7/1/02
7/1/07
7/1/06
7/1/05
7/1/04
7/1/03
7/1/02

Schedules of Funding Progress
7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

The actuarial value of assets is adjusted to reflect the timing of 
the payment of the employer contribution receivable. As a result, the 
actuarial value of assets differs from the market value of assets and the 
net assets held in trust for pension benefits.

The annual pension cost for Fiscal Year 2008 and the actuarial 
accrued liability as of July 1, 2007 were affected by a change in the 
mortality assumption projected for future mortality improvements using a 
generational approach. The annual pension costs for the Union Plans and 
the SAM Plan each increased by $4.0 million due to the mortality change. 
The actuarial accrued liability for the Union Plans and SAM Plan increased 
$27.8 million and $30.3 million, respectively, due to the change.

The annual pension cost for Fiscal Year 2007 and the actuarial 
accrued liability as of July 1, 2006 were affected by a change in 
the formula for determining plan benefits. The change, which did 
not include the Transit Police Plan, increased the rate used in the 
calculation of Average Annual Compensation not in excess of Social 
Security covered compensation. The annual pension costs for the 
Union Plans and SAM Plan increased by $3.0 million and $2.1 million, 

respectively, due to the formula change. The actuarial accrued liability 
for the Union Plans and SAM Plan increased $22.8 million and $15.0 
million, respectively, due to the change.

The annual pension cost for Fiscal Year 2006 and the actuarial 
accrued liability as of July 1, 2005 were affected by a change in actuarial 
assumptions. The change lowered the investment return assumption 
from 8.5% to 8.0%. The annual pension costs for the Union Plans and 
SAM Plan increased by $3,245 and $2,644, respectively, due to the 
change. The actuarial accrued liability for the Union Plans and SAM Plan 
increased by $30,460 and $23,698, respectively, due to the change.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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Assets:

Cash and short-term investments

Receivables
	E mployer contributions
	P lan member contributions
	I nterest and dividends
	S ales pending settlement

		T  otal receivables

Cash equivalents and
Investments, at fair value
	 Cash equivalents
	 U.S. Government obligations
	 Corporate and other
  		  government obligations
	P referred stocks
	 Common stocks
	P rivate equity
	R eal estate
  		
		T  otal investments

  		T  otal assets

Liabilities:

Purchases pending settlement

Net assets held in trust for pension 
	 benefits

City
Transit

Division
Plan

$   —

    35,690 
800 

1,597 
  2,126 

 
40,213 

19,050 
8,631 

59,817 
891 

233,516 
 12,536
 7,599

 
342,040 

382,253 

  
3,949 

$378,304 

Red
Arrow

Division
Plan

$   —

  2,620 
76 

128 
   171 

  
2,995 

1,526 
691 

4,791 
71 

 18,705 
  1,004
   609

 
27,397 

30,392 

   
317 

$ 30,075 

Frontier
Division

Plan

$   —

    556 
29 
39 

   53 
  

677 

470 
213 

1,478 
22 

 5,767 
  308
  188

 
8,446 

9,123 

   
97 

$  9,026 

2008
Total

$   —

   68,464 
1,104 
3,363 

  4,479 
 

77,410 

40,111 
18,171 

125,954 
1,876 

 491,707 
 26,395
 16,000

 
720,214 

797,624 

  
8,316 

$789,308 

Transit
Police
Plan

$   —

   779 
59 
67 

   89 
   

994 

795 
360 

2,501 
37 

9,757 
   524
   317

 
14,291 

15,285 

   
165 

$ 15,120

SAM
Plan

$   —

 
28,819 

 140 
1,532 

  2,040 
 

32,531 

18,270 
 8,276 

57,367 
855 

 223,962
 12,023
 7,287

 
328,040

 
360,571 

  
3,788 

$356,783 

7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)

statements of plan net assets
as of June 30, 2008
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Assets:

Cash and short-term investments

Receivables
	E mployer contributions
	P lan member contributions
	I nterest and dividends
	S ales pending settlement

 	   Total receivables

Cash equivalents and
	I nvestments, at fair value
	 Cash equivalents
	 U.S. Government obligations
	 Corporate obligations
	P referred stocks
	 Common stocks
	P rivate equity

		T  otal investments

		T  otal assets

Liabilities:

Purchases pending settlement

Net assets held in trust for pension 	
	 benefits

City
Transit

Division
Plan

$   —

33,091 
323 

1,872 
  1,077

 
 36,363 

32,253 
19,398 
59,914 

586 
 262,874 

 5,532
 

380,557 

416,920 

 14,605 

$402,315 

Red
Arrow

Division
Plan

$   —

  2,429 
33 

148 
   86 

  2,696 

2,545 
1,531 
4,728 

46 
 20,746 

   437
 

30,033 

32,729 

  1,154 

$ 31,575 

Frontier
Division

Plan

$  —

493 
12 
43 
26

 
574 

744 
448 

1,383 
14 

6,067 
126

 
8,782 

9,356 

  338 

$ 9,018 

2007
Total

$   —

61,941 
468 

3,917 
  2,254 

 68,580 

67,447 
40,566 

125,296 
1,226 

 549,741 
 11,569

 
795,845 

864,425 

 30,547 

$833,878 

Transit
Police
Plan

$   —

     683 
33 
73 

   42
 

   831 

1,262 
759 

2,347 
23 

 10,293 
   217

 
14,901 

15,732 

   571 

$ 15,161 

SAM
Plan

$   —

 
 25,245 

 67 
1,781 

  1,023
 

 28,116 

30,643 
18,430 
56,924 

557 
 249,761

 5,257
 

361,572 

389,688 

 
13,879

$375,809

7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)

statements of plan net assets
as of June 30, 2007
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Additions
Contributions
	E mployer
	P lan member
		T  otal contributions
Investment income (loss)
	N et realized gain
	N et increase (decrease) in 
		  fair value of investments
	I nterest
	 Dividends

	T otal investment income (loss)
		L  ess investment expense
	N et investment income (loss)

		T  otal additions
Deductions
	 Benefits
	A dministrative expense

		T  otal deductions

Net increase (decrease)

Net assets held in trust for
	 pension benefits

Beginning of year

End of year

City
Transit

Division
Plan

$ 35,690
  4,444

 40,134

19,054

(55,635)
6,293

  5,199

(25,089)
  1,800

 (26,889)

 13,245

37,062
   194

 37,256

(24,011)

 402,315 

$378,304

Red
Arrow

Division
Plan

$ 2,620
  431

 3,051

1,509

(4,426)
501

  414

(2,002)
  143

 (2,145)

  906

2,392
   14

 2,406

(1,500)

 31,575 

$30,075

Frontier
Division

Plan

$  556
  160
  716

446

(1,332)
151

  125

(610)
  43

 (653)

  63

 51
   4

  55

8

 9,018 

$9,026

2008
Total

$ 68,464
  6,305

 74,769

 39,896

(116,743)
13,206

 10,914

(52,727)
 3,777

(56,504)

 18,265

62,440
   395

 62,835

(44,570)

 833,878

$789,308

Transit
Police
Plan

$   779
  334

 1,113

  749

(2,244)
254

  211

(1,030)
   73

 (1,103)

   10

  41
   10

   51

(41)

 15,161

$15,120

SAM
Plan

$ 28,819
   936

 29,755

18,138

(53,106)
6,007

  4,965

(23,996)
  1,718
(25,714)

  4,041

 22,894
   173

 23,067

(19,026)

 

375,809

$356,783

7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

statements of changes in plan net assets
for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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Additions
Contributions
	E mployer
	P lan member
		T  otal contributions
Investment income
	N et realized gain
	N et increase in 
		  fair value of investments
	I nterest
	 Dividends

	T otal investment income
		L  ess investment expense
	N et investment income

		T  otal additions
Deductions
	 Benefits
	A dministrative expense

		T  otal deductions

Net increase 

Net assets held in trust for
	 pension benefits

Beginning of year

End of year

City
Transit

Division
Plan

$ 33,091
  4,264

 37,355

26,077

18,671
6,621

  4,402

55,771
  1,856

 53,915

 91,270

35,733
   155

 35,888

55,382

 346,933 

$402,315

Red
Arrow

Division
Plan

$ 2,429
  414

 2,843

2,046

1,463
519

  346

4,374
  145

 4,229

 7,072

2,275
   12

 2,287

4,785 

 26,790 

$31,575

Frontier
Division

Plan

$  493
  151
  644

  586

  417
148
  99

 1,250
  41

 1,209

 1,853

 54
   3

  57

1,796

 7,222 

$9,018

2007
Total

$ 61,941
  6,086

 68,027

 54,351

38,890
13,795
  9,178

 116,214
 3,865

 112,349

 180,376

59,935
   316

 60,251

 120,125

 713,753

$833,878

Transit
Police
Plan

$   683
  339

 1,022

  984

699
249

  167

2,099
   70

 2,029

 3,051

  33
   11

   44

3,007

 12,154

$15,161

SAM
Plan

$ 25,245
   918

 26,163

24,658

17,640
6,258

  4,164

  52,720
  1,753
 50,967

 77,130

 21,840
   135

 21,975

 55,155

 320,654

$375,809

7. PENSION PLANS (continued)

statements of changes in plan net assets
for the Year Ended June 30, 2007

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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7. pension plans (continued)

8. Other Postemployment Benefits

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

SEPTA Pension Plans’ financial statements are prepared using the 
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized 
in the period which the contributions are due. Employer contributions 
to each plan are recognized when due. The employer has made a 
formal commitment to provide contributions. Benefits and refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of 
each plan.

Plan Description

The Authority sponsors single-employer defined benefit plans 
that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (“OPEB”) 
for the following employee groups: Supervisory Administrative and 
Management employees (SAM), Transit Police (TP), Non-Railroad 
Union Groups, and Railroad Union Groups. The Authority does not 
issue financial reports for these plans.

The Authority provides postemployment health, prescription 
drug and life insurance benefits to substantially all employees, which 
generally commence on the first day an employee retires. Health 
insurance benefits are generally provided for three years, except 
Health Maintenance Organization plan coverage is provided for fifty 
months. Prescription drug benefits are generally provided over the 
retiree’s lifetime for SAM and Non-Railroad Union Groups, except for 
employees hired after November 2005 for whom coverage ends at 
age 65. Prescription drug benefits end at three years for TP and end 
at the earlier of three years or age 65 for Railroad Union Groups. In 
addition, the Authority provides life insurance coverage to substantially 
all retirees except TP. Life insurance is provided in various amounts to 
a maximum of annual final salary for SAM which decreases annually to 
20% after four years.

The Authority provides long-term disability insurance with benefit 
eligibility after one year of employment for SAM and TP. Disability 
benefits are not covered by the OPEB valuation since generally the 
benefits are fully insured and paid up while an employee is actively 
employed. The union employees are eligible for disability benefits 
from their respective pension plans.

Benefits provisions for SAM employees are established and may 
be amended in accordance with recognized Authority policy. The 
bargaining union employees receive benefits based on the respective 
union agreements in effect at the time of retirement.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments 
are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded 
on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported 
sales price at current exchange rates.

Investments

There are certain assets of the pension plans that are commingled 
for investment purposes. Each plan’s assets may be used only for the 
payment of benefits to the members of that plan, in accordance with 
the terms of the plan.

Funding Policy and Related Information

For SAM employees, contribution requirements are established 
and may be amended in accordance with recognized Authority policy. 
Contribution requirements for bargaining unit employees are based 
on the respective union agreements in effect at the time of retirement. 
Contributions are made by the Authority on a pay-as-you-go basis. The 
Authority’s OPEB cost for each plan is calculated based on the annual 
required contribution (“ARC”) of the employer, an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. 

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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8. Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

The Authority’s OPEB cost and change in net OBEP obligation for Fiscal Year 2008 are as follows:

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plans, and the net OPEB obligation for Fiscal Year 
2008 for each of the plans are as follows:

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the Authority and plan members) and include the 
types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefits costs between the Authority and the plan members to that 
point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities.

OPEB Cost and annual required contribution

Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

Net OPEB obligation, end of year

SAM

Transit Police

Non-Railroad Union Groups

Railroad Union Groups

	T otal

Non-Railroad 
Union Groups

$ 82,546

18,397

64,149

—

$ 64,149 

Percentage of 
OPEB Cost 
Contributed

25.6%

1.7%

22.3%

16.5%

22.5%

Transit 
Police

$  1,375

24

1,351

—

$  1,351

 
Annual 

OPEB Cost

$ 33,316

1,375

82,546

8,785

$126,022

Fiscal  
Year 

Ended

6/30/08

6/30/08

6/30/08

6/30/08

6/30/08

Railroad 
Union Groups

$  8,785

1,450

7,335

—

$  7,335

 
Net OPEB 
Obligation

$ 24,777

1,351

64,149

7,335

$ 97,612

 
Total

$126,022

28,410

97,612

—

$ 97,612

SAM

$ 33,316

8,539

24,777

—

$ 24,777 

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

—

—

—

—

—

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Amortization period

Actuarial assumptions:

	I nvestment rate of return

	P rojected salary increases for life insurance

	H ealthcare inflation rate

Non-Railroad 
Union Groups

7/01/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

4%

—

9.5 - 11.5%
Initial 

5% Ultimate

Transit 
Police

7/01/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

4%

—

9.5 - 11.5%
Initial 

5% Ultimate

Railroad 
Union Groups

7/01/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

4%

—

9.5 - 11.5%
Initial 

5% Ultimate

SAM

7/01/07

Projected

unit credit

Level

dollar, open

30 years

4%

5.25%

9.5 - 11.5%
Initial 

5% Ultimate

SAM

Transit Police

Non-Railroad Union Groups

Railroad Union Groups

	T otal

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Liability (AAL)
(b)

$  373,043

9,676

801,605

76,757

$1,261,081

Actuarial
Valuation

Date 

7/01/07

7/01/07

7/01/07

7/01/07

7/01/07

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(b - a)

$  373,043

9,676

801,605

76,757

$1,261,081

Funded
Ratio

 (a / b)

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Covered
Payroll

(c)

$108,401

9,167

259,216

64,994

$441,778

UAAL as a
Percentage of

Covered Payroll
( (b - a) / c)

344.1%

105.6%

309.2%

118.1%

285.5%

8. Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Schedule of Funding Progress

Significant methods and assumptions are as follows:

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plans and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual 
revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress 
presents the actuarial value of plan assets, if any, for comparison to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Since the Authority adopted GASB 
45 on a prospective basis in Fiscal Year 2008, only one year of information is presented above.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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9. Deferred Compensation

10. Commitments and Contingencies

11. Public Liability, Property Damage and Workers’ Compensation Claims

The Authority offers an employee savings/deferred compensation 
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. 
The plan, available to all employees, permits employees to defer 
includible compensation, as defined in the Internal Revenue Code, in 
an amount generally not to exceed $15.5 thousand annually on a pre-
tax basis. Effective January 1, 2000, the Authority began to provide 
SAM employees with a 10 percent matching contribution, subject to 
limitations, which amounted to $339 thousand and $333 thousand 
for Fiscal Years 2008 and 2007, respectively. The total amount of all 

The Authority is involved in various legal matters arising from the 
normal course of operations. In management’s opinion, the resolution 

The Authority is self-insured for claims arising from public liability 
and property damage. The Authority also maintains a self-funded 
insurance trust for excess amounts of $5 million to $20 million as of 
June 30, 2008. The Authority provides a liability for the self-insured 
portion based on the present value of the estimated ultimate cost of 
settling claims, discounted at 4%, using past experience adjusted for 
current trends as of June 30. The valuation incorporates the effects 
of the statutory limitation on damages (the liability cap). The annual 
public liability and property damage claims expense for Fiscal Year 
2008 increased approximately $9.5 million and the related liability as 
of June 30, 2008 increased $7.1 million primarily due to higher claim 
settlement costs and a slight increase in the number of outstanding 

contributions made by employee and employer generally cannot 
exceed $15.5 thousand annually per individual.

The Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP) Trust Agreement provides 
that all assets and income of the DCP are to be held in the DCP Trust 
for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries and as a 
result are not recorded in the Authority’s financial statements. The costs 
and expenses of administering the plan are borne by the participants.

of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Authority’s financial position.

claims. The liability also includes the favorable impact of approximately 
$4.0 million due to a decrease in the estimated inflation rate from 8% 
to 6% used for litigated claim costs.

The Authority is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims for 
its employees. The Authority provides a liability for the self-insured 
amount based on an actuarial valuation that uses the present value 
of the estimated ultimate cost of settling claims, discounted at 4%, 
utilizing a case-by-case review of all claims, adjusted for estimates of 
future adverse claims development, as of June 30.

Total claims liabilities, including changes for Fiscal Years 2008 
and 2007, are as follows: 

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)

Balance at June 30, 2006

	 Claims expense

	P ayment of claims

Balance at June 30, 2007

	 Claims expense

	P ayment of claims

Balance at June 30, 2008

Balance at June 30, 2008, due within one year

Workers’
Compensation

$  59,207

12,462

(16,382)

55,287

12,609

(15,982)

$  51,914

$  12,327

Public Liability
and Property Damage

$ 126,816

33,958

(36,846)

123,928

43,483

(36,415)

$ 130,996

$  52,400
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12. swaption and swaps
Terms of Swaption and Swaps

The Authority entered into three swaption contracts with two 
separate counterparties, Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc. and 
Citibank, N.A., in March 2003 that provided the Authority an up-
front payment of $19.1 million based on a notional amount of $356.1 
million. As a synthetic forward refunding of its Special Revenue Bonds, 
Series of 1995B, 1997, 1999A and 1999B, this payment represented 
the present-value savings of refundings as of March 1, 2005, 2007 
and 2009, respectively, prior to the anticipated future refunding of the 
bonds. Each swaption gave the counterparty the option to obligate the 
Authority to enter into a pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap. 
If the remaining option, which relates to the currently outstanding 
Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A and 1999B, is exercised, the 
Authority expects to issue variable-rate refunding bonds. During Fiscal 
Year 2005, the Authority terminated the swaption contract exercisable 
March 1, 2005 with a notional amount of $9.5 million, reducing the 
up-front payment amount to $17.4 million. Effective March 1, 2007, 
the swaption with the notional amount of $131.3 million, associated 
with the Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1997, was exercised, the 
associated bonds were called, and Variable Rate Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series of 2007, were issued. Concurrently, the Authority entered 
into a pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swap with a current 
notional amount of $125.6 million as of June 30, 2008, which terms 
are described in the table below. The swap was initially associated with 
the Series of 1997 bonds and, after the refunding, is associated with 
the 2007 bonds.

In December 2005, the Authority restructured the swaption 
contracts associated with its Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A 
and 1999B by converting the swap variable receive rate from 67% of 

1-month LIBOR to the SIFMA Index, thereby reducing the swaptions’ 
probability of being exercised and eliminating tax risk. In order to pay 
for the conversion, the Authority simultaneously entered into an off-
market basis swap under which the Authority agreed to pay the SIFMA 
Index rate and receive 67% of 3-month LIBOR plus 13.52 basis points 
and an upfront amount to cover the swaption’s conversion costs. During 
Fiscal Year 2007, the Authority entered into a constant maturity swap 
(CMS) contract associated with its Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 
1999A and 1999B, under which the Authority agreed to pay, effective 
March 1, 2008, 67% of 3-month LIBOR plus 13.52 basis points and 
receive 63.64% of ten-year USD-ISDA-Swap Rate. In January 2008, the 
Authority sold and terminated its CMS contract, resulting in a gain of 
$5.4 million recognized in investment income.

The counterparties have the one-time option to exercise the 
remaining swaption agreement on March 1, 2009, the first call date 
of the Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A and 1999B. If the 
swaption is exercised, the swap would also commence at the call date. 
The swap’s fixed pay rate, as indicated in the table on page 54, was 
set at a rate that, when added to an assumption for future remarketing 
and liquidity costs, will approximate the existing debt service of the 
“refunded” bonds.

The swaps are associated with the Special Revenue Bonds, Series 
of 1999A and 1999B, and with the Variable Rate Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series of 2007, which refunded the Series of 1997 bonds. The 
swaps’ receive-variable rates are also indicated in the table on page 54 
as a percentage of the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or the 
Securities Industry and Financial Association (SIFMA) Index.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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Associated Revenue
Bond Issue

Series of 2007

Series of 1999A & 1999B

Series of 1999A & 1999B

	T otal

* MLCS = Merrill Lynch Capital Services, Inc.

* CB = Citibank, N.A., New York

** = Swap effective dates

Associated Revenue
Bond Issue (continued)

Series of 2007

Series of 1999A & 1999B

Series of 1999A & 1999B

	T otal

Bond
Amount
at Par

$125,600

211,240

211,240

$336,840

Swaption/Swap
Pay Rate

4.706%-Fixed

4.42%-Fixed

SIFMA Index 
-Variable 

Bond
Interest

Rate

Variable

4.75% to 5.25%

4.75% to 5.25%

Swaption/
Swap Variable
Receive Rate

67% 1-Mo. LIBOR

SFIMA Index

67% 3-Mo. LIBOR+ 
13.52 bps

Notional
Amount

$125,600

215,290

215,290

$340,890

Fair
Value

$ (15,220)

(10,810)

(5,297)

$ (31,327)

Swaption/Swap
Exercise

and Bond
Call Date

3/1/2007**

3/1/2009

12/29/2005**

Credit
Counterparty*

MLCS

50% MLCS & CB

MLCS

Termination
Date

3/1/2022

3/1/2028

3/1/2028

Counterparty
Rating

A1/A/A+

A1/A/A+ &

Aa1/AA/AA-

A1/A/A+

Description

Swap

Swaption

Basis Swap

Description

Swap

Swaption

Basis Swap

12. swaption and swaps (continued)

The swaption and swaps, with related information, as of June 30, 2008, are as follows:

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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12. swaption and swaps (continued)

Fair Value

As of June 30, 2008, the swaption and swaps had a negative fair 
value totaling $31.3 million, estimated using the zero-coupon method. 
This method calculated the future net settlement payments required by 
the swaps, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield 
curve correctly anticipate future spot interest rates. These payments 
were then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield 
curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each 
future net settlement of the swaps.

Issuance Risk

If the option is exercised and refunding bonds are not issued at 
the respective call dates, the bonds would not be refunded and the 
Authority would make net swap payments as required by the terms 
of the contract - that is, making a fixed payment to the respective 
counterparty for the term of the swap at the above fixed swap pay rate 
and receiving a variable payment at the above variable swap receive 
rate, as a percent of LIBOR.

Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2008, the Authority was not exposed to credit 
risk, or the risk of economic loss due to a counterparty default on its 
outstanding swaption and swaps because the swaption and swaps had 
negative fair values. However, should interest rates change and the 
fair values of the swaption and swaps become positive the Authority 
would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivatives’ fair 
value. The swap agreements contain varying collateral agreements 
with the counterparties. The swaps require collateralization of the fair 
value of the swap should the counterparty’s credit rating fall below the 
applicable thresholds.

Basis Risk

Basis risk is the risk that the interest rate paid by the Authority to 
bondholders on underlying variable rate refunding bonds that might 
be issued if the swaption is exercised differs from the variable swap 
rate received from the applicable counterparty. The Authority has basis 
risk on the swap associated with the Variable Rate Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series of 2007, issued March 1, 2007. If the swaption associated 
with the Special Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999A and 1999B, is 
exercised, the resulting swap has basis risk since the Authority receives 
a percentage of 3-month Libor plus basis points to offset the actual 
variable bond rate the Authority would pay on its bonds. The Authority 
is exposed to basis risk should the floating rate that it receives on a 
swap be less than the actual variable rate the Authority might pay on 
any bonds that might be issued. If the option is exercised and the 
variable-rate bonds issued, the actual savings ultimately recognized by 
the transaction will be affected by the relationship between the interest 
rate terms of the to-be-issued variable-rate bonds versus the variable 
payment received on the swap.

Termination Risk

The Authority or the counterparty may terminate any of the swaps 
if the other party fails to perform under the terms of the respective 
contracts. If any of the swaps are terminated, the associated variable-
rate bonds would no longer be hedged to a fixed rate. If at the time of 
termination the swap has a negative fair value, the Authority would be 
liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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14. Subsequent Event
Subsequent to June 30, 2008, the capital credit market 

experienced significant events which negatively impacted the 
availability and cost of credit. Effective July 18, 2008, the Authority 
converted its interest rate mode on its Variable Rate Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series of 2007, from an auction mode to a weekly 
mode whereby the interest rate is determined on a weekly basis by 
the remarketing agent, PNC Capital Markets LLC.

The negative events in the credit market as well as the general 
economic conditions in the United States and worldwide have 
caused a significant decline in equity markets resulting in a significant 

decrease in investment values of both pension and non-pension assets 
either directly invested in or tied to the equity markets. At present, 
the investment value declines are expected to be temporary and not 
permanent, and equity market recovery, if it occurs, may take some 
time. The major resulting impact of the equity markets’ decline on the 
Authority will be in the form of increased annual required contributions 
(ARC) and increased pension expense with respect to its various 
pension plans.

13. Dependency on Governmental Funding
The Authority is particularly dependent on its external 

governmental funding sources keeping pace with additional future 
costs due to normal inflationary increases, infrastructure repairs, 
revenue fleet replacements, technological advances and changing 
regulatory requirements. Historically, funding sources, coupled with 
cost reductions and passenger fare increases have been adequate; 

however, should the external funding sources, which comprise over half 
the Authority’s operating budget and essentially all of its capital budget 
not keep pace with future cost levels, the affect on future operations 
would be substantial. The Authority anticipates that external funding 
sources will be sufficient to support its continuing operations.

(Amounts in thousands of dollars except where otherwise stated)
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